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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 30 Septembar 2019

(all amounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), unluss vtherwise speuified)

Intanglble assets

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment
Rights of use assels
Investments in subsidiaries
Doferred lax acest

Total non current assets

Inventories, net

Recelvables and prepayments, nel
Derivative Financial Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Subscribed share capltal

Share premium

Revaluation reserves, net of deferred tax
impact

Other reserves

Accumulated losses

Current year result

Total equity

Hybrid loan - long-term portion
Long-term borrowings from banks
Pravisions

Long-term lease debts

Total non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contfract liabllities

Short-term lease debis

Short-term borrowings from related parties
Short-term borrowings from banks

Total current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

——————
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Notes September 30,2019

December 31, 2018

Aloxandru Come

Fely]

18,831,401 17,940,585
152,720 152,720
3,506,671,157 3,622,505,369
5,948,897 -
1,629,020,055 1,629,020,055
163,026,035 163.026,035
5,323,850,265 5,432,644,764
985,825,241 816,566,125
1,810,055,880 1,630,215,/63
1,446,502 6,197,265
23,044,809 19,450,444
2,820,952,432 2,372,429,597
8,144,602,697 7,805,074,361
4,410,920,573 4,410,920,573
232,637,107 232,637,107
536,862,214 566,948,566
3,402,780,981 3,408,858,991
(6,251,99/7,3/5) {6,049,10/,446)
{319,592,063) (230,205,630)
2,011,611,437 2,340,153,161
69,291,612 69,291,612
625,848,256 489,405,927
335,464,381 335,464,381
4,969,644 -
1,035,574,803 894,161,920
4,756,582,999 3,936,412,324
97,407,520 09,334,760
3,448,786 -
103,850,156 438,118,914
136,126,905 106,883,282
5,097,416,366 4,570,759,280
9,144,602,097 7,805,074,361
MIRCEA-STEFAN STANESCU
linancial Manager )~
Prepared by (Chlef Agcountant)

Caplaifatony noles Aorn 1w B0 are pal of thess Aiantled stuternonts
English' il Is for Infmation purposes only. Romanlan language text is the official text for submission.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.
INCOME STATEMENT

for the financial year ended 30 Septembaer 2019
(ull arnourits exprossed i Lol ("RONT), uiless vtheiwise spocified)

January - September

January - Septembeor

Notes 2019 2018
Nat revenues from contracts with
customers 18 11,052,631,896 11,280,623,285
Cost of sales 19 (10,809,946,962) (10,780,554,886)
Gross profit 242,684,933 500,088,400
solling, gonoral and administrative
expenses 20 {240,860, /3b) (219,604,403}
Other operating expenses 21 (41,412,591) {43,999,404)
Other operating income 21 78,473,218 28,037,313
Operating profit 38,884,826 264,501,815
Financial expenses 22 (164,305,211) (118,464,254)
Financial revenues 22 17,175,997 10,249,815
Net foreign exchange gains / {(losses) 22 (211,347 ,675) (125,859,364)
Profit/{Loss) before income tax (319,592,063) 30,428,112
Deferrad tax 23 - -
Net Profit/{Loss) {319,592,063} 30,428,112
Earnings per share (bani/share) 26 {0.72) 0.07
SADUOKHAS MERALIYEV . MIRCEA-STEFAN STANESCU
President of the Board of Dl;_e’etal?.-, {y 3;';-‘5?_\ Financial Manager,|
e Ty \“.) b
C/”@ IR AL U e ’L‘J\
/ ks -x! v L}‘\_
'; ‘l ur ‘-", v :J
YEDIL UTEKOV D el Prapared by (Chlef Acgountant)

General Manager Alexandru C t

Fxplanatory notes from 1 to 31 ara pari of lhese financial statemsnts
English translation Is for information purposes only. Romanian fanguage lex is the official texi for submission.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.
STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the financial year ended 30 Septembar 2019

{all amounts expressed it Lei ("RON"), unless olheiwise specified)

January - September  January - septamber

Naot Profit / {Loss)

Otlier coinpreliensive hsoine

Othen conprehensive income to be reclassifiad to
mncunie stotoment in subsequent periods (net of tax):

Gains / (losses) from derivatives

Total comprehensive income to be reclassified
income statement in subsequent periods (net of
tax):

Other comprehensive income not to be raclassified fo
income staternent in subsequent periods (nel of tax):

Revaluation of buildings category in property plant
and equipment

The retained eamings representing the surplus from
revaluation reserves

Total other comprehensive income not to be
reclassifed lo Income stalement in subseguent
periods (net of tax):

2019 2018

(319,592,063) 30,428,112
(6,179,010) (15,741,447)
(6,479,010) (15,741,447)

3 (30,102,394)

Total other comprehensive result for the year, net
of tax

Tolal comprehonslve 1esult for the year, nel of
tax

- 30,102,394
(6,179,010) {15,741,447)
(325,771,073) 14,686,665

SADUOKHAS MERALIYEV
President 71‘ the Doard of Directors
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MIRCEA-STEFAN STANESCU

Financial Manogo%a\

Prepared by {Chief Accountant)
Alexandru Coel Anton

Explanatory notes from 1 to 31 are pant of these financial stalements

English trans!ation is for Information purposes only. Romanian language lex s the official text for submission
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial yoar onded 30 Septembor 2019

{all amounts exprassed in Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise spacified)

Not result boforo incomo tax

Adjustments for-

Depreclation and amoriisation

Provislona for racelvables and Inventaries {incl wrils off)

Provislon for crvitoruneatilal Betdiities and Rigationg

Expenses with penaltles

Interest expenses

Inrerest incomoe

Incoma from dividends

Lussebfgaing o detivelives

Unreulised lutelgn exchange (galnifoss fiura restalemernt and snonetary ems
L:ash gonaratod from oporations before working capital changes

Net working capital changes in:

Receivables and prepayments

Inventories

Trade and other payables and contract Rabilities, including payables variation
for capita! expendilures

Change tn working capital

Cash receipt / (payments) for derivatives, net
Nat cash provided byf{used In} operating activities

Cash flows from Invasting activitlas
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of Infanglble oascta

Dividends recelved

Not cash used In investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash pooling receipt / (payments), net

Short - term loans/ {repaid to) received from banks, net

Long - term loans received from banks

Short - term joans {repaid to)/ received from shareholders and related parties
Increase / (repayment) financial leasing

Interes| and bank charges paid, net

Net cash from / {used in) financing activitias

Increass / (Dacraase) In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash aquivalents at the beginning of pericd

Cash and cash aqulvalents at the end of the period

SADUOKHAS MERALIYEV - (3 35

Se r 13  September 30, 2018
(318,682,063) 30,428,112
287,552,620 238,520,256
{96,673,107) 20,007,214
- (13.654.238)
800,513 684,875
164,305 211 118 454 254
(18,291,009) (10,249,815)
(437,106)
(17,647} 30,034
43411 LD
103,564,424 431,029,620
{249,659,178) {215,970,695)
{134,588,/ 1) 6,658,238
221,579,491 (39,115,767)
{161,668,463) (218,128,248)
(772,426) 1,371,470
{58,876,465) 214,272,841
{148,408,682) (88,662,698)
{2.143.281) {810,440)
{26,667 -
{180,578 640) (89,482,147)
553,210,563 28,085,500
29,233,803 (388,853,172)
89,128,521 530,643,078
(301,893,803) {171,620,825)
(2,334,702) -
(184,305,211) {118,484,254)
213,048,471 (118,938,673)
3,594,365 4,852,021
19,450,444 22,863,280
23,044,809 27,718,301

President of the Board of irec% - TN Financial Manage
ollgpa w7 A0
o 1A

YEDIL UTEKOV
General Manager

MIRCEA-STEFAN|STANESCU

o

Prepared by (Chief Accouptant)
Alexandru Cornel

L
Explanatory fggerirom 1 1e’31 are part of these financial statements

English trans!ation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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ROMPETROI. RAFINARE S .A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

(All amounts sxpressad in Lai ("RUN"), unlass otherwise spscified)

1. GENERAL

Rompelrol Ralinare S.A. (lleremnaller referred to as “the Company” or "“Rompetrol Rafinare”) is a company
Incorporated under Romanian laws, The Company uperales lwo refineries Petromidia and Vega and also
a petrochemical plant. Petromidia Refinery is the one with the highest capacity (of 5 million tons/annum,
nameplate capacity) and the only Romanian refinery at the Romanian Black Sea shore, which processes
exclusively imported crude oil and produces E.U. standard motor fuels, other petroleum products and
certain petrochemicals. Petromidia refinery was designed and built during 1975 and 1977 and was further
vupgraced in tha early ‘80s and betwean 2005 - 2012 Vega refinery was builtin 1905 and upgraded in the
following decades.

Rompetrol Rafinara § A production facilities are located in Romania. The number of employees of the
Company as at 30 September 2019 is 1,125, respectively 1,172 as at 31 Decomber 2018.

The registered address of Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. is 215 Navodari Blvd., Constanta, Romania.
Rompetrol Raflinare S.A. is a joint slock company listed in the Bucharest Stock Exchange since 2004.

The Company is a part of the KMG International N.V Group. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared at the lave! of the parent company KMG International N.V., with the head office located at World
Trade Center, Strawinskylaan 807, Tower A, Bth Floor, 1077 XX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands. These
annual financial stalements are public.

The ultimate parent of the KMG International N.V. is the company “National Welfare Fund Samruk
Kazyna" JSC, an enlity with its headquarters in Kazakhstan and owned by the Kazakh State.

The company also prepares consolidated financial statements that have a public character and are
available on the website of the company, www.rompetrol.com, at the section Relation with Investors,
subsection Rompetrol Refining.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

Effective as of 31 December 2012, the standalone financial statements of the Company are prepared in
accordance with the Order of the Minister of Public Finance no. 1286/2012 subsoquent amended by
Order of the Minister of Public Finance no. 2844/2016 for approval of the Accounting regulations in
compliance with the international Financlal Reporting Standards applicable to the companies whuse real
shares are accepled for transaction on a regulated market. These stipulations are compliant wilh the
requirements of the Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as approved by the European Union,
except the regulations of IAS 21, the Effects of the exchange rale variation with regards to the functional
currency

For the purpose of preparing these Financial Slalements, in accurdunce with lhe requirements of the
Romanian law, the Company's functional currency is the Romanian leu (RON).

The standalone financial statements were prepared based on the historical cost, except for financlal
instruments and buildings category which are presented at the fair value in the account of profit and loss,
and in the statomoent of other comprehensive income, respeactively.

The standalone financial statements are prepared in RON and all the values are rounded up to the closest
amount in lei, if not otherwise indicated.

8
Fnglish translation Is for information purposes only Romanian tanguage text is the official text for submission



ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 Septambar 2019

(All amaunts expressed mn Lei {“HUN"), unless otherwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAN [ ACCOUNIING POLICIES (continued)
b) The going concern

The financigl stalemenls of he Cumpany are prepared on a going concern basia. As at 30 Scptember
2019 and 31 December 2048, lhe Company reported net assets amounted to RON 2,012 million, and
respectively RON 2,340 million. For the exercises ended as at 30 September 2019 and 31 December
2018, the Company reportad net losses of RON (319.6) million, and respectively RON (230.2) milion.

The accumulated losses incurred in the past are due to the fact that the Company has been affected by
the epecific of tha rafining activity, characterized by a significant volatility and lower refinery margins in the
past years, but considering that the massive investment trend of the last period combined with an
improvement in markel conditions the company has echieved und s ulming fur fulure pusillve (inancial
results which will dacraase the cumulated loss recorded so far.

The stralegy fur We followiiy yesrs is a mix of projects of optimization of production and energy costs,
optimum utilization of refining capacity and improvement of production yields. In order to Improve the
financial performance, the following measures have been taken:

» Reducing the refinery costs for the purpose of rendering the processes efficient and increasing
profitability.
« Improvement of the product mix in order to increase the share of higher margin products

The management claims that these developments will lead to an improvement of the Company's capacity
to financially support its ongoing operations.

Considering the Company's plans for 2019, and other aspects above mentioned, it is considered that the
preparation of the lInunciul stulements 1s bused un Uik ungoing activity principle.

¢) Changes In accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the
following amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2019:

¢ IFRS 18: Leases

IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (lessee’) and the supplier (lessor’). The new
standard requires lessees to recognize most leases on their financial statements. Lessees will have a
single accounting model for all leases, with certain exemptions. Lessor accounting is substantially
unchanged.

The Company elscted to apply the modified retrospective approach ae a traneitional mathod. Under
{his approach, e Cuinpany does not restate comparative information.

Consequently, the date of initial application is the first day of the annual reporting period in which the
Company first applies the requirements of the new standard.

At the date of initial application of new leases standard, the Company recognises the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity as of 1 January 2018.

The Cuinpany elects to apply the standard to contracts that were previously identifiod ae leaces
applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4, The Company therefore doesn't apply the slunderd to contracts that
were not previuusly idenbihed as conlaining a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

Company elects to use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts for which the
lease terms ends within 12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which
the underlying asset is of low value.

Following the Company’s detailed assessment of IFRS 16 the impact of IFRS 16 adopton in 201915
presented, as [ollows.

9
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year ended 30 September 2019

(All amounts exprassed in Lei ("RUN"), unlass otherwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impact on the statemont of finanial position (incroase / (decreass)) as at 30 September 2019:

RON
Assets
Right-of-use assets 5,948,897
Liabilities
L oaca linbilitias 8,418,430
Estimated Impact on equity 2, 469,5.10)
out of which:
impact on Retaing earmnings —12,770,652)
impact of Current year resuit - 301,149

The estimated impact on the statement of profit or loss (increase / (decrease)) for 2019:
RON

Depreclation expense (Included In cost of sales) 449,383
Depreciation expense (included in Selling) 44,938
Depreciation expense (included in administrative expenses) 1,662,928
Operating lease expense (included in Cost of Sales) (588,323)
Operating lease expense {included in Selling) {65,216)
Operating lease expense (included in administrative expenses) (2,315,300)
Operating profit 911,599
Finance costs 362,545
Exhange rate 247935
Rasult for the year 301,119

Due to the adoption of IFRS 16, the company’s operational prafit will improve, while expenses with
interest will increase. This is due to the modification of the accounting expenses for leasing contracts that
have been classified as operational leasing in accordance with 1AS 17.

IFRS 9: Prepayment features with negative compensation (Amendment)

The Amendment is effective for annual reporting perieds beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
earlier application permitted. The Amendment allows financial assels wilh prepuyiment lealures that
permit or require a party to a contract either to pay or receive reasonablo compensation for thy garly
termination of the contract (so that, from the perspective of the holder of the asset there may be
‘nefative compensation’), to be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income Management has assessed there is no material impact at Company's level
from application of this slandard.

IAS 28: Long-term Interests In Assoclates and Joint Ventures (Arnendmentls)

The Amendments are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with
earlier application permitted. The Amcndmoents rclote to whethor the measurement, in particular
impairment requirements, of long term interests in assoclates and joint ventures that, in substance,
form part of the ‘net investment' in the associate or joint venlure should be governed by IFRS 9, {AS 28
or a combination of both. The Amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments,
befure it applies IAS 28, to such long-torm interests for which the equity method s not applied. In
applylng IFRS 9, he entity does nol tuke actount of any adjustmerils o e carrying amount of long-
term Interests hal arlse hom applying IAS 28. These Amendinents have nol yet been endorsed by the
EU. Management has assessed thera Is no material Impacl al Company's fevel ium apjilication of tis
standard.

10
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

(All amounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise specified)

»

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued])

IFRIC INTERPRETATION 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation is effoctive for annual periods beginning on or aftor 1 Joanuary 2019 with eariier
application permitted. The Interpretation addresses the accounting for incomo ioxos when tax
treatments involve unceriainty that affects the application of IAS 12. The Interpretation provides
guidance on considering uncertain tax treatments separately or together, examination by tax
authontes, the appropnate method to refiect uncertamty and accounting for changes In facts and
circumstances. Management has assessed there i1s no material impact at Company's level from
application of this standard

IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtalinent or Seltlemnenl {Amendimenls)

The Amendmants are offoctive for annual periods beginning on or atter 1 January 2019 with earlier
apphcabon permitted. [he Amendments require entitles to use updated actuarlal assumptions tu
dotermine current service cost and not intarest for the remainder of the annual raporting period after a
plan amendment, curtailiment or setflement has occurred. The Amendments also clarify how the
accounting for a plan amendment, curlailment or seitiement affects applying the asset ceiling
requirements. These Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. Management has assessed
there is no material impact at Company's level from application of this amendments.

The IASB has Issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 — 2047 Cycle, which Is a collection
of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019 with earlier application permitted. These annual improvements have not yet been
endorsed by the EU. Management has assessed there is no material impact at Company's level from
application of these amendments.

> IPRS 3 Business Commbinations and IFRS 11 Juint Anangements: The amendments to IMS
3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures
previously held interests in that business. The amendments to {FRS 11 clarify that when an entity
obtains joint control of a business that s a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure
previously held interests in that business.

» IAS 12 Income Taxes: The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of payments
on financial instrumenis classified as equity should be recognized according to where the past
transactions ar events that generated distributable profils has been recognized.

» IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: The amendments clarify paragraph 14 of the standard that, when a
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale, and some of the specific borrowing related to
that qualifying asset remains outstanding at that point, that borrowing is to be included in the
funds that an entity borrows generally.

d) Standards Issued but not yet effactive and are not early adopted

The Company has not early adopted the following standards/interpretations:

Amendment In IFRS 10 Consolldated Pinanclal $tatements and 1AS 28 Investments In
Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Asgsociate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
thoso in IAS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its agsociate
or Julnt venture, The main congsguence of e emendinents is that a full gain or loss is recognized
when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these
assets are housed In a subsidlary. In December 2015 the IASB postponed the effaclive date of lhis
amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method of
accounting The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the FUI Managament has asseased
there is no material impact at Company's level from application of this standard.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

{All amounts exprossed in Lel "RON"), unfass otherwise specifled)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

e Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards

The IASB issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporling on 28 Maroh 2018. Tho
Conceplual Framework sels oul a comprehensive sel of cuncepls for financial reporling, standard
selling, yuidance fur preparers in developing consistent secounting policiss and assislance o olliers in
their efiorts to undersiand and interpret the standards. IASB also issued a separate accompanying
document, Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, which sets
out the amendments fo affected standards in order to update references to the revised Conceptual
Framework. Its objective is to support transition to the revised Conceptual Framework for companies
that develop accounting policies: ueing the Conceptual Framawork when no IFRS Standard applies to a
particular transaction. For preparors who dovelop accounting policies based on the Conceptual
Framework, it is effective for annual perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

+ [PRS 3: Business Combinations (Amendments)
The IASB issued amendments in Definition of a Business {Amendments to IFRS 3) aimed at resolving
the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of
assets. The Amendments are effective for business combinations far which the acquisition date is in
the Misl anmual reporing period beglnning on or alter 1 Junuary 2020 and o assel acyuisilivns Uial
occur on or after the beginning of that period, with earlier application permitted. These Amendments
have not yet been endorsed by the EU. Management has assessed there is no material impact at
Company's level from application of this standard,

+ |IAS 1 Presentation of Financlal Statements and JAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors: Dafinition of 'material' (Amendments)

Tha Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier
application permitted, The Amendmenis clarify the definition of material and how it should be
applied. 1he new dofinition stales thal, ‘Information Is maleral if oniting, misslaling or obscuting 1L
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make based on those financia! statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity’. In addition, the cxplanations accompanying the dofinition have
been improved. The Amendmants also ensure that the definition of material is consistent across alt
IFRS Standards. These Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. Management has
assessed there is no malerial impact at Company's level from application of this standard.

o) Significant professional judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires thal the management should Issue professional
judgments, estimates and assumptions thai affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses, of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on the previous experience and on other faclors considered relevant.
Howover, uncertainty about theso forecasts and estimates could rosult in adjusting the accounting value
of the assets and liabilities in the future periods.

The estimates and assumptions that are the basis of the accounting judgements are constantly reviewed.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the astimate is revised if the
rewision affects that penod or in the period of the revision and the tuture perlods If the revision affects both
current and the future perlods.

The matiers presented below are considered to be the most important in understanding the professional
Judgments that affect the preparation of these financial statements and the uncertsinties that could affect
he result of e opetalions, the Mnanclal pusiton and e cash llows.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that can lead lo material adjustments to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below The Company based its assumptions and estimates
ull pdramelers avallable when e financlal slalements were prepated. Cxisting circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are bayond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected In the assumptions when
they occur.

12
English transiation is for infarmation purposes cnly. Romanian language text is the official taxt for submission



ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for thae financlal year ended 30 September 2019

(Adl amounts expressed in Let (“RUN"), unless otherwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

- Impairment of non-financlal assets

The Company assesses at each reporting dule whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the camying
amounts for major property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment.

If assets are determined to be impaired, the carrying amounts of those assets are written down to their
rocovorablo ameunt, which ie higher of fair value lees costs to sell, and value in use determined as the
amount of estimated discounted future cash flows. Impairmenls, axcept those related to goodwill, are
reversed as applicable to the extent that the events or circumstances that triggered lhe orlginal
impairment have changed

Estimates of future cash flows are based on management estimates of future commodity prices, market
supply and demand and product margins Other factors that can lead to changes in estimates include
restructuring plans and legislations changes. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate
used for the discounted cash flow model, as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate
used for extrapolation purposes.

- Provision for environmental liability

The Company is involved in refining and petrochemicals. Environmental damage caused by such
activities may require the Company to incur restoration costs o comply with the regulations in force.
Analysis and estimates are performed by the Company together with its technical and legal advisers, in
order lo determine the probability, timing and amount involved with probable required outflow of
resources. Estlinated resloraliun costs, for whith cash oullow may be probable, are recognized as &
provision in the Company’s financial statements. When the final determination of such obligations differs
from the recognized provisions, difference s registered in the Company's Income statement.

Additional details on the provisions related to the environment-related obligations are set out in Note 17.

- Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets resulting from the unused tax losses are recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available, against which the losses can be utilized. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Further details on defarrad tax assets and for those losses carried forward for which defarred tax asseats
has ond has not been rocognizod aro providod in Note 23.

- Canrying value of trade and other receivables

The Company has established a provision matrix that is based an its historical credit loss cxpenence,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. The Company
assesses the requirement for an allowance for impairment in trade and other receivables when
conlroclual payments are 360 days past due. Howaver, in certain cases, tha Company may also consider
a hnanclal assel  be In deteult when nternal or external Infonnatlon Indicates that the Cumpany s
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company

- Garrying value of inventories

The Company considere on a regular basis the carrying valua ot inventories in companson to planed use
of the inventuries, e effect of Jumaged or obsolete inventories, technical losses and the net realizable
velue in comperison to the cost, based on latest available information and market conditions. As
applicable, it is recorded an adjustment for impairment of inventories.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 Septamber 2019

(Al amounls exprassed m Let ("RON"), unless otherwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
- Provision for litigations

The Company analyses its legal exposure regularly in urder lo delermine whelier provisions are required.
In determining the amount of the provision, assumptions and eslimales are made in 1elation lo the
probability of lesing the litigation, the expected claim to be paid and the expected timing of the payments.
Changes to these estimates could have a significant impact on the amount of the provision.

Further details on the provisions relating to litigations are provided in Notes 17, 21, 28.

f) Financial instruments

A financial instrument ic any contract that gives riea 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instruimenl of another entily,

a. Financial assels
Initial recognition and measuretnent

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income {OC!), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financiaj asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient, the Company Initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
ol a financial asset nol al falr value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade recelvables thul do nol
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the accounting policies in
section (r) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cast or fair value through QCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument
level.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order o generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash fiows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the doto that the Company oommits fo purohnse or soll tho ascot.

Subsequeant measurement

Fur putposes of subsequent ineasurement, financial assels are classilied in thres categories:

« Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

+ Financial assots designated ot fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
upon dereceynilion {eguily instrumenls)

» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year ended 30 Scptembor 2019

(ANl amounts expressed i Loi ("RON"), utloss olheiwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assels held for rading, financial
assets designated upon Inltlal recognition at falr value through profit or loss, or financial assels
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assels are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embeddsd derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loas, irespecdtive of tha businose madel
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amarlised cost or at fair value through
0L, as descrnibed above, debt mstrumenis may be designated at far value through profit or loss on initiel
recoghilion il dufny co eliminales, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch

Financial assels al fuir value Lrough prufil or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at far
value with net changes in fair value recognised In the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not
irrevocably elacted to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company's statement of financial position) when:
* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

Or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially alt the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor fransferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligatione that the Company has ratainad.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original camying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all dobt instruments not hold
al fuir value Lhrough profit or luss. ECLs are based on the differonce botween the contrachual cash flowrs
due I accordance with the contracl and all the cash fows hal the Culnpany expeots to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year ended 30 $optomber 2019

{All amounts expressed in Les {("RON"), unless otherwise specihied)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for oredit lossos that result from default
events that are possible within the nexl 12-monlhs (a 12-month ECL). Fur those credit exposures for
whith lhere has been a slgnificant nuiease In credil tisk since initisl recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

lor trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplifled approach in calculating
ECLs. Thoroforo, tho Company doae not track changes in cradit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision
matrix that 1s based on its histoncal cradit luss experience, adjusted tor forward-looking factors speclfic to
the deblurs and the sconomic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 360 days past due.
However, in cerlaln cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements heid by the Company. A financial
assel is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

b. Financial llabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Habilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
luss, loans and buttowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effcctive
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

The Cumnpany's financial isbililies include rade and olher payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financiai liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
« Financial liabilitier at fair value through profit or loss
e Loans and Credits

Derecognition

A financial liabllity is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the sama lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existng labiity are substantally modified, such an exchange or
modification is troated as the derecognition of the origina! llabllity and the recognilions ol @ new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

. Offselting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsst and the nat amount is reported In the statement of

financial position if there is a curently enforceabls legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention fo sattle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

(Al amounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), unfess otherwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
u. Iipainment of fnaricial assels

When the Company has transferred lis rights 1o recelve cash flows from an asset or has enlered into a
pass-lhrough arrangement, il evaluales if and o what exlenl it has retalned the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
assal, nor transferrad control of the asset, the Company continues to recognised the transferred asset to
tho oxtont of tho Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the righte and obligations that the Company has retained.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a Company of financial asseta ia impaired. An impairment exists if ono or more evente that has
accurred since the initial recognilion of the assel (an incurred ‘luss event’), has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assel or the Company of flnanclal assets that can be reliably
esfimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a Company of deblors s experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probabliity that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a8
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaulits.

g) Property plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment of the Company are stated at cost less cumulative depreciation, except for
bulldings that are periodically revalued and bouked al falr value.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including custom duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes and any costs directly atiributable to bringing the asset to the location
and the condlition necessary for operation. Expenses incurred after commissioning of the asset, such as
repairs and maintenance costs are charged to income in the period in which the costs occurred. In
situations where it can be demonstrated that expenses have increased the future economic benefits
obtained from the use of intangible assets besides the standard evaluation of its performance, the
expenditure is capitalized as additional costs of the tangible assets.

Starting December 31, 2017, the Company changed its accounting policy regarding the recognition and
measurement for buildings category, from cost model to the revalued one. The Company has changed ils
accounting policy to measure buildings category at the revalued amount in accordance with 1AS 16. IAS
16.37 defines a class of properly, planl and equipment as a grouping of assets of similar nature and use
in an entity's oporatione. The Company determined that the buildings catagory constitute separate class
of proporty, plant and equipment, based on their naturo, characterigtice and risks

Buildings category are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
recognized after the date of revaluation Valuations need to be performed with sufficient frequency to
ensure that the carrying amount of a revalued asset does not differ materially from Its falr value.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCI and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However,
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognized In profit or loss,
the Increase Is recognized in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in lhe slatement of profit or
loss, excepl o lhe extent thal It olfsets an exisling surplus on e same sssel recognized in lhe asset
ravaluation surplus,

17
Enplish transiation Ie for Information purposes only Romanian language text is the official text for submission



ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year ended 30 September 2019
{All amounts exprassed in Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise specified)

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained eamings is made for the difference
between depreclation based on the revalued carmrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the
asset's orlginal cost. Addltionally, accumuiated depreciation as al lhe revalualion dale is eliminaled
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being seld is transferred
io retained earnings, unless a transfer hasn't been already made during utilization period of the revaluated
asset.

Asscts in progress represent installations and buildinge in construction and are presantad at cost, less
any impairment losses. This includes the cost of construction and other direct costs. Doprociation of those
assats and the others is registered staring with the date when they are ready to be used for the activity
they are inlended.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment less land and Immobliization In prograss is calcutaled using
tha linear method throughout their estimated lifetime:

Buildings and other constructions 10 - 100 years
Tanks 20 - 30 years
Tools and other technological equipment 3-20 years
Vehicles 5 years
Furniture and office equipment 3-10 years
Computers 3 years

Following the change in accouniing policy regarding recognition of buildings category from cost to
revaluation method, also the economic remaining life utilization of the buildings were revalued at
December 31, 2017. The remaining life utilization were estimated by the specialized valuer based on
ANEVAR's Assessment Guide GEV 500 (in concordance with normative act P135/2000 issued by
INCERC). According to GEV 500 life utilization of buildings are up to 100 years. The depreciation of
buildings category based on the revaluated remaining life utilization applies starting January 01, 2018.
Before this date (i.e January 1, 2018) the buildings category was stated at cost. The change from cost to
revaluation provide a more transparent and up to date picture of the value of the Company's assets.

When assets are sold or derecognized, their cumulative costs and depreciation are eliminated and any
income or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement.

Assels purchased under finance leases are recorded in the stalement of financial position and
depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same hasis as owned asssls, or where shorter the
term of the relovant loase

h) Intangible assets

Intanglble assets are measured Initlally at cost. Intanglble assets are recognized #f il 1s probable Dwl the
future economic benefils should be albibulable to lhe asset and flow to the enterprise and if the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible asscts are amortized on a
straight-line basls over the best estimate of lheir useful lives:

Intangible assets consist of sofiware and licenses and are amortized on a straight-line basis over 3 - 5
years, respectively 24-25 years for the licenses for transmission of technological data from the plant to the
Refinery command center.

Davelopment costs for specific projects which are reasonably anticipated to be recovered through
commercial activity as well as expencditure on acquired computer saftware licenses are capitalized and
amortized using the straight-line method over their useful lives, generally 3 years. The carrying amount of
each Intanglble asset is reviewed annually and adjusted for impaitment where il is considerod nocessary.
Cxternal and internal costs specifically associated with the maintonance of alroady oxisting computer
software programs are expensed as incurred.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

(All amounts exprassed in Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise spocifiod)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
I} Investments In subsidlarles

Financial assets represent long-term strategic investments and are stated at historical cost, less any
adjustments impairment caused by a diminished value. Ihe main indicators considered for the
identification of impairment are current and anticipated results of the company in question, in the context
of the industry in which it operates.

Further details on financial assels are provided in Note 7.
J) Impairment of non-financial assets, including investnent in subsidiaries

Al vach reporling date the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets to determine whether there Is any Indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimaled in order to
determine the extent of the impaimment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an Individual assel, the Company eslimales e 1ecoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the respective assct bolongs.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carmying
amount, the camying amount of the assets (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized as an expense Immedlately, unless tha relevanl assel Is slaled al
revalued amounl in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impuinnent luss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does niot exceed the camying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized as income immediately, unless the relevant asset Is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

k} Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benelils will be required
to settle the obligation and & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of tho obligation. Whera the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized ns a
suparate assel, bul unly when lhe relinbursement is virtually certain. The expense related to any provision
is prosanted In the incomo statemont not of any reimbursement. If the effact of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting 1s used, the increase in the prowision due to the passage of time
is rocognized o9 a finance oast.

Provislons are nol recognized for fulure vperaling lusses,
Provisions are measured at lhe presant value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required

to seltle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present
value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year endad 30 Septamber 2019

(All amounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), uniess otherwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Environmental obligations

Environmental costs relating to current or future income are recorded In the Income statement or
capitalized as appropnate. Costs relating to an existing condition caused by past operatlons and which do
not contribute to current or future earnings are recorded in the income statement.

The company has an environmental policy in accordance with existing leqistation and which respects any
cbligations resulting from environmental or operating permits. In order fo ensure compliance with al! the
rules and provisions, the company has established a monitoring system in accordance with tho
requirements of the relevant authorities. In addition, investment plans are adjusted to reflect any future
known environmental requirements. The above mentioned costs ale eslimated on lhe basis of relevant
anvironmental studies.

Debts on environmental remediation costs are recognised when estimates of these debts are probable
and acsoclated costs can be reasonably estimated. In general, the chargeability of these provisions
coincides with the commitment undertaken by a formal action plan, or, if it occurs earlier, with the
disinvestment or closure of inactive locations.

i} Inventories

Inventories, including work-in-process are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net
realizable value is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion,
marketing and distribution.

Cost comprises the acquisition cost and other costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
thelr present locatlon and conditlon and Is determined by weighled avorage method lor all (he mvanlones.

m) Trade recelvables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

An impairment analysis is parformed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with simlilar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical reglon, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
Is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, cash with banks and checks in course of belng cashed. Cash equivalents
are short-tarm, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash with
remaining three months or less to maturity from the date of acquisition and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

o} Revenus from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services is transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitied
in exchange for thosa goods or services. The normal oredit term is 30 to 00 days upon dolivery.

In recognising revenue, the Company applies the five-step model based on the requirements of [FRS 15:

a) udentitying the contract with the customer;
b} identifying performance obligations under the contract;
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 Septeamber 2019

(All amounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c) determining the transaction price;
d) allocating the lransaction ice o perfunmance obligations,
e) recognising revenue at (or during) performance of obligation.

(i) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a varlable amount, the Company estimates the amoun! of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to lhe cuslomer. The
variable congideration I8 estimated at contract inception end constrained until it ic highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsaquently resolved. Some contracts for the
sale of petroleum products provide customers volume rebales. The volume rebates give rise to variable
consideration

{ii) Volume rebates

The Company provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of products
purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against
amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates,
the Gompany applies the most likely amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshoid and the
expected value method for contracts with more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of vorioble consideration is primarily drivon by tho number of volume thresholds
contained in the contract. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of
variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected future rebales.

(ill) Significant financing component

Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient
in IFRS 15, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a
significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of
the promised good or service to the customer and when Lhe customer pays for that good or service will be
less than one year.

Contract liabilities

Contract assels

A confract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time. It the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is duc, a contract nsset is recognised for the camad conelderation that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A recelvable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the conslderation Is due). Refer to accounling pulicies
of financlal assets in section i) Financial instruments — initial recognilion and subsequent measurement
and section m) Trade receivables.

Contract liabilities

A contract liabllity Is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which lhe Coinpeny Lias
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the paymant is made or the payment I1s due (whichever Is earller). Contract llabllitles are
recagnised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year ended 30 September 2019

{All amounts exprassed in Lel ("RON"), unless otherwise spacified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

p) Interest bearing loans

All Ioans are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less directly atiributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortized
cost, using the effective interest methed.

Gaine and lossos are rocognizod in tho incomo stalomenl when the liabllities are derecognized as well
through the amortization procoss.

g) Borrawings costs

Dorrowing costs directly atiributeble to the acquisition, construction or production of an aseet that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the respeclive assels. Al lhe olher cosls zre expensed in e period Uiey ocour.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other cost that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

r) Ratiremant benefit costs

Payments made to state - managed retirement plans are dealt with as defined confribution plans where
the Company pays fixed contributions into the state-managed fund and has no legal or construclive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee
benefils ralating to employee service in the current and prior period. The contributlons are charged as an
expense in the same period when the employee service was rendered.

Under collective labor agreements, the employees are entitled to specified retirement benefits, payable on
retirement, if they are employed with the Company at the date of their retirement. These amounis are
estimated as of the reporting date, based on the following informations: applicable benefits provided in the
agrsement; the number of employees in the Company and the actuarial estimates of the future loans. The
defined benefit liability as of reporting date comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation
with the related service cost charged to the income statement. All actuarial gains and losses are fully
recognised in other comprehensive income items in the period in which they occur for all defined benefit
plans. Actuarial gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive income are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income.

The Company has no other liabilities with respect to future pensions, heaith plans and other costs for its
employees.

s) Taxes
- Current income tax

Current income tax assels and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid lo lhe laxalion authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, by the reporting date, in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity Is recognized in equity and not in the
incume stalemenl. Manageinent periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to
silualions in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provislons
wliete gpproginlate

22
English translation Is for Information purposas only. Romanian language text |s the official text for submission



ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

(All amounts expressed in Lei ("RON’), unless othsrwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
- Deferrad tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporiing date between
the tax bases of assets and llabilittes and thelr carrying amounts for financlal reporling purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recagnizod for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in
a Uansacton that Is nul a business comblnation and, al the Ume of e tansaction, affects neilher Ge
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

s In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidieries, essociates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary dilferences can be
cunltrolled and Il [s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, camy forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the axtent that it is probable that Laxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized except:

s Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects nesther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

» In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferrod tax assots aro rocognized only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The camrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recugnized to the extent Lthal il has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assel to be recovered.

Deferred tax asseis and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted until the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss account is recognized outside profit or loss
account. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
urronl tax actete against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same toxable
entity and the same taxation aulhorily.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Company s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is prabablo that the tamporary diffarance will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lor he Minancial year ended 30 Saplember 2019

{All amounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise sgpecified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
- Sales (revenues) related tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except:

¢ Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assels or services is not recoverable from the taxation
autherily, in which caso he salos tax is recognized ae Pl of e cosl of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable;

s Recelvables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax Included.

Tha net amount of aales tax recovarabls from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included es part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financlal position.

t) Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the year in which they are approved by the shareholders.
u) Foreign Currency Transactions

For the purpose of preparing these TMinancial Statements, in accordance with the requirements of the
Romanian law, the Company's functional currency is the Romanian leu (RON),

The exchange rates RON/USD and RON/EUR are the following:

Currency September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
RON/USD 4.3488 4,0736
RON/EUR 4.7511 4.66839

The Company translates its transactions and balances in foreign currency, in the functional currency by
applying the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of
transaction.

Exchange rate differences arising on the settlement of monetary assets and liabilities or on reporting them
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period or reported in the
previous financial statements are recognized in the income statement in the period they arise.

v) Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into contracts to purchase and sell crude oil and oil products at future delivery dates.
These contracts expose the Company primarily to commodity risks of changes in fair value of crude oil
and related oil products. The Company also uses financial instruments (primarily Options, Swaps and
forwards) to hedge its risks associaled wilh lair value fuctustion relaling Lo cerlamn it commitments and
forecasted transactions.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company's policies approved by board of directors,
which provide wrillon pringiples on lhe use of inancial derivalives.

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are re-
measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dales.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative

For the purpuse of hedye scsounting, hedyes are classifiod as:
« Fair value hedgee when hedging the exposure to changes in tho fair value of a racogniced asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

{All amnounts expressed in Lei ("RON”), unlass otherwise specifiad)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

« Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particuiar risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or
the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management cbjective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge

Before 1 January 2018, the documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged
item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Company will assess the
eflactiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedgod item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be
highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongolng
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods
for which they were designated.

Beginning 1 January 2018, the documentation includes Identification of the hedging instrumenl, lhe
hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Company wiil assess whether the hedging
relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge
ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio Is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge
accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

« There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

» The effect of credil risk does not 'dominate the value changes' that resuft from that economic
relationship.

» The hedge ratio of the hedging refationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged
item that the Company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging Instrument that the Company
actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Hedges that meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:
Fair value hedge

The Company buys crude oil from the market, refines it and later sells the finished products (e.g.:
gasoline, diesel, jet fuel eic.). The company hedges priced Inventories (both raw materials and finished
products) above BOS (basis operating stock) using futures instruments for a period that approximately
matches the operating cycle.

Hedge accounting is applied for the futures instruments. The change in the fair value of a hedging
instrument is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as Cost of Sales. The change in the fair value of
the hedged item atiributable 1o the risk hedged is recorded as part of tho carrying value of the inventory
and is alse recognised in Uw stalement of profit or loss as Cost of Sales. If the hedged item is
derecoynised, Uw unamerlised fair value is racognised immediately in profit or loss (see note 19).

Cash Flow Hedge

The Company buys crude oil from the market, refines it and lator colls the finished products (e.g.:
gasoline, diesel, jet fuel etc.). Throughout a given period, the volatility associated with the oil market, both
In crudes and in finished products, is transmitted to the Company's refinary margin (difference between
the purchase price of crude ol end the selling price of finished products). To reduce this volatility, the
Company hedges the margin with a swap on # hedged baskel as relevant for the perlod.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

(Al amounts expressed in Lel ("RON"), unless otherwise specified)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuad)

Hedge accounting is applied for the refinery margin Swap instruments. The effective portion of the gain or
loss on the hedging instrumenl is recognised in Olther Comprehiensive Income in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or ioss. Amounts
recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction alfects profit or loss (see
note 19).

Changos in tha fair value of derivative finnnoial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognized in period profit or loss as they arise.

w) Emission Rights

CO2 emission rights quota are allocated to the Company's refining and petrochemicals oporations. For
the parnod 2013-2020 the allowances have been validated by kuropean Unlon and are posled on lhe
Romanian Environmental Ministry website. Company received lts quota allocation for 2018 and the one
for 2019 has been received at the end of February 2019. The Company accounts for the liability resulting
from generating of thase amissions using the net liability method. The liability Is recognized only at 2 point
where the actual emissions exceed the quota allocated to the respective company. Income is recognized
only when excess certificates are sold on the market.

x) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the llabllity takes placo clther:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability

Or

+ |n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assct or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in thelr economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, descnbed as follows, based on the lowest lavel input that Is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation lechnigues for which the lowest lovel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement 15 directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techmgues lor which he lowest level input that Is significant to the falr value
measurement Is unabservable
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for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

{All amounts expressed in Lei ("RON’}, unless otherwise specified}

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis,
lhe Curnpany delermines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categonsation (based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the falr value measurement
as a whole} at the end of each reporling periud.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above.

y} Current versus nen-current classification

The Company presents sssots and liabilities in the stotement of finenola! position basod on current/non-
currant classification. An asset is current when it is:

» Expacted to ba reallsed or Intended to be sold or consumed In the normal opetaling cycle

» Held primarily for the purpase of trading

= Expacted to be realised within twelve months after the raporting period

Or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a iability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

» It is expected to be seltled in the normal operating cycle

» |t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be seitled within twelve months afier the reporting period

Or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of tho liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies al other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabliiities.

z) Contingencies

Contingent liabllities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefils is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic
bonofits ic prabable
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE 5.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year endad 30 September 2018

{All amounts exprassed in Lal ("RON?), uniess utherwise spucified)

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software / Intangibles
Licenses Other in prograss Total

Cast
Opening balance as of
January 1, 2018 46,114,171 150,123 6,852,131 53,116,424
Additions 146,381 - h4y¢, 144 5,437,575
Transf{ers* 2,773,078 - (2.802771) 270,307
Closing balance as of Decembar 31,
2018 49,032 640 150,123 9,641,543 58,824,307
Additions 223,191 1,611,860 2,135,060
Transfers, reclassifications and
adjustments*® 8.223 - - 8,223
Closing balance as of September 30,
2019 49,264,054 150,123 11,553,413 60,967,589
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance as of
January 1, 2018 (38,384,844) {112,592) - {38,497,436)
Charye fur lhe year {2,348,755) {37,531) - {2.386,286)
Closing balance as of Dacembar 31,
2018 (40,733,599) {150,123} - {40,883,722)
Charge for the year (1,252,466} - - {1,252,466)
Closing balance as of September 30,
2019 {41,986,066) {150,123) - {42,136,188)
Net book value
As of Daceamber 31, 2018 8,299,041 - 9,641,543 17,940,585
As of September 30, 2019 7,277,988 - 11,553,413 18,831,401

*} Includas transfers from assels in progress, lrensfers inffrom langlble assels, reclassifications to other categories and other
adjustments.

Major part of ,Other” intangible assets refer to development expenses.

4. GOODWILL

The goodwill amounting to RON 152,720 represents fractions of the goodwill of the companies Qilfield
Fxploration Business Solutions SA (former Rompetrol $.A), Hompetrol Downstream S.R.L. and
Rompetrol Well Services S.A., following purchase of shares from these companies in Rom Oil S.A.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 Septembaer 2019
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost or vaiuation

As of January 1, 2018
Acquisitions

Tiunsfors fron CIP

[ ransfars from inventory

Transfers and reclassifications®

As of December 31, 2016

Acquisitions

Transfars from CIP

Disposals

Transfers and reclassifications®
of Saeptember 1

Accumulated depreclation &

Impalrment

As of January 1, 2018

Charge for the year
Accumulated depreciation
of disposals

Transfars and reclassifications®
As of Decomber 31, 2018

Charge for the year
Accumulatad depreciation
of disposals

Transfers and reclassificationa®
As of September 30, 2019

st b r31
Net book vzlug as of September 30,
2018

Plant and Fumiture  Construction
Land Bulldings equipment and othars _in progiress Total

192,480,007  1,625,366,178 3,514,352,557 16,389,881 184,820,584 5,533,509,217

- 119,847 593,000 81,712 200,966,825 261,761,190

48,287,281 217,484,028 461,803 {206,517,638) (271.626)

- - | 1,498 - - 11.480

5 31,882,410 (31,957,110) 94,700 - -
192,480,007 1,705,635 515 3,700,404 879 17,028,196 179,368,771 5,785,008,368

- - 765,921 - 147,745,558 148,511,481

- 4,271,580 18,835.433 - {23,308,801) {102,788)

- - {21,544,458) - - (21,544,458)

- 44,177,862 (44,177,862) - - -

192,480,007 1.754,085.057 3,654473813 17028196  303,805529  5.921,872602

{25.800,827) {41.662) (1.817.190.315} (6.899.577)  (3.971.485) (1.853.303.867)

{1,658,751) (97,505,201) (218,069,182) (956,502) - {319,187,835)

2 - (11,486) - - (11,498)

- (2,054) 2,054 - - -

(27.557.579) (97.548917) (2,036268938) (7.956079)  (3.171.485) (2.172.502.999)

{1,242,563) (83,178,051) {179,074,830) (749,451) - {264,242,905)

- - 21,544,458 - - 21,544,458

- 102,407 (102,407} -
[28800.142) (180,622,561} (2193801727} (8705530) (371485 [2415201.445)

164022425 1,608,086,508  1,664.226030 072117 176199286  3.622.505.360
163,676,065 1,573.462496 1460572086  B.322,666  300,634.044  3,506,671,157

*) Includes transfers from fangible assels in progress, transfers inffrom intangible assels, reclassifications lo other calegories and

uthar ediustmens.

- Impairment

No additional depreciation was recorded in the first 9 months of year 2018 and 2018,
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 Septerber 2018

{All amounts expressed in Lai ("RON"), unless otharwise specified)

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
- Construction in progress

In the first 9 months of the year 2019 the significant contribution to the total acquisitions for construction in
progress is the ISCIR projects within the two retnenes (about RON 17.5 milion), the modemisation
projects of tanks (approximately RON 19 million), the projects of replacement catalysts (approximately
RON 10 7 million), tho madornization projects of products loading ramps (about RON 12.8 million), the
Vopor rocovery systom ot the point of loading CF Voga project (about RON 5.1 million), LPG recovery
from DCU gases (about RON 18.9 milion) and a new boyler at heating station Vegs (about RON 6.3
milion).

At the end of 2018 the main projects remaining in construction in prograss refers to the following: Tank
rehabilitation amounting to RON 21.7 mililion, State Inspection for Control of Bollers, Pressure Vesscls
and Hoisting (ISCIR) autherisations amounting to around RON 23.9 mllilon), Replacement of Conveclive
System for CO Boiler project amounting to around RON 14.9 million, Replacement of Low NOx burnes at
Reformer Catalyst unit (about RON 9.5 million), replacement of the old 6 KV swithces and the releys
SRA? (approximately RON 5 4 million) and Refinery specific optimisation programs in amount of RON
104 million.

At the end of October 2018 has been stariad the planned shutdown activity within the Petromidia refinery
{refining and petrochemical units) and Vega refinery, which was finalized by the end of November 2018.
The purpose of this activity is to carry out the necessary works in order to maintain all the installations in
optimal operating parameters in order to maximize the flow of the installations and the quality of the
obtained products and to create the conditions for the implementation of future projects, to expand and
increase the production volume, to ensure the reliability of the equipment during the operation, and to
align the equipments and pipelines with the legislative requirements in force.

in April 2018, a planned slowdown activity was carried out within the Petromidia refinery aiming to keep
the installations in optimal operating parameters in order to ensure the units maximum flow and the quality
of the obtained products. The main revision works included the following recument technological
operations: catalyst change in the Petrol Diecel Hydro-Fuel Plant; decoke furnace equipment in Delayed
Coking Plant and catalyst regeneraticn in Catalytic Reforming Plant.

- Disposal

In the first 9 months of the year 2019 the amount of RON 21.5 million related to the disposed assets it
referes to the replacement of the used catalysts in 122 DHT (Disel HydroTreater), CR (Catalytic
Reforming) and MTBE (Methyl Tertiary Butyl Ether) units

No asset disposals were recorded in 2018.

- Capitalization of borrowing costs

The Company finances its activities including through loans and the cost of debt for the acquisition of
assets is capilalized In the cost of the asset, when specific loans have been obtained (investment). In the
first © months of the year 2019 and 2018 the Interest was not capitalized.

- Revaluation of bulldings category

Slarling December 31,2017, the Company changad its accounting policies regarding the recognition and
measurement of its non-current assets, for bulldings category, from cost model to the revaluation model.
ftie Company has changed s sccounling pullsy to mesasure bulldings calegoty al e revalued amount In
accordance with IAS 16. IAS 16.37 defines a class of property, plant and equipmenl us a grouping of
assets of similar nature and use in an entity's operations. The Company determined that the buildings
category constitute separate class ot property, plant and equipment, based on thewr nature, characlenstcs
and risks

The change from cost Lo revaluution will provide a mote ransparent and up lo-dale piclure of the value of
the Company's assets. Fair value of the bulldings category was determined using the depreciated
replacement cost method. The valuations have been performed by a spaclaltzed valuer. A nel galn from
the revaluation of lhe Company’s buildings category of RON G25.5 million was recognized in the building
category.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
- Fixad assets pledged

The company pledged assets with a net camying amount of RON 1,047,516,687 (2018: RON
1,091,987,723), as follows:

s guarantees in favor of banks: RON 001,139,640 (2018 RON 835,638,076);

» guarantees in favor of ANAF: RON 246,377,039 (2018: RON 256,348,647).

in 2010 it was establishad by ANAF an asset freeze on all fixed assets and Investments and on the equity
as woll ag on the sharas, amounting to RON 1,606,020,055 in fuvor of the Rumariun stale (represented
by ANAF). On these titles there was set up a rank 2 guarantee in favor of KMG Inlernalional N V

On the guarantees in favor of ANAF, on September 10*, 2010, ANAF has established an asset freeze on
the investinenls lield by the Cumpany in its subsidiaries and on the movable and immovable assets of the
Company, excopt inventories. [he asset freeze 15 based on article 124 of the Fiscal Procedure Code and
the main resull is thal the Company cannol sell / ransler the assels under freeze.

According with the Memorandum of Understanding signed with the Romanian State and approved by
Government Decision no. 35/2014, ANAF should remove and revoke tha distraint established on 10
September 2010. To date ANAF has not applied the requirements of the MoU and has not lifted the asset
freeze.

On 9 May 2016, Rompetrol Rafinare SA was notified that it was included as a civil responsible party in a
file under investigation by DIICOT (See Nole 28). Also, on the same date, the movable and immovable
assets of Rompetrol Rafinare SA, as well as all the investments in subsidiaries, were subject to an asset
freeze.

On 22 April 2019 DIICOT issued an ordinance whereby all participations held by the company to its
subsidiaries, as well as part of the movable and immovable property of the company were released from
the criminal seizure.

On September 30, 2019 no enforcement process has been made.

6. RIGHTS OF USE ASSETS

Piant and
Land equipment  Vehicles Total

Initial cost/ revalued

Closing balance at Decamber 31, 2018 - - - -
Change in the beginning balance in accordance with

IFRS 16 6,897,486 829,177 252,816 7,979,479
Addiltlons In year 2018 26,866 - - 26,660
Closing balance as of Saptember 30, 2019 6,924,152 829,177 252,816 8,006,148
A i d iation & Impalrmen -
Closing balance at December 31, 2018 - - - =
Charge for the year {1,618,995) {358,145) {80,108  (2,057,248)
Closing balance as of September 30, 2019 {1,618,995) {358,145) (80,108) (2,057,248)
Net book value as of December 31, 2018 - - - -
Net book value as of Septamber 30, 2019 5,305,157 471,032 172,708 5,048,897
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments in subsidianes

September 30, 2019

December 31, 2018

1,629,020,055

1,629,020,055

Total 1,629,020,055 1,629,020,055
Investments in subsidiaries
Details regarding subsidiaries at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are as follows:
Ownership at Cwnership at Balance as at Balance as at
September 30, Dacember 31, September 30, Uecamber 31,
Rango of activity 2019 4018 2014 i, U8
Rutapettol Duwnslien S.R.L.  Fuel sales 99,99% 99,90% 1.000,408,067 4,090,406,087
Rompetrol Petrochemicals Petrochemicals
SRL 100,00% 100,00% 919,898,245 411,898,245
Mom OH €.A. Rental servicos 00,00% 00,00% 101,216,860 191,716 660
Rompetrol Logistics S R.L. Logistics operations 86,18% 86,19% 24,349,123 24,249,123
Rompetrol Quality Control Quality Control
SRL Services for oil
praducta 70.91% 7091% 11,349,810 11,348,910
Total of equity Investments M M
*Nole: all subsidiaries ere Romanian companies
8. INVENTORIES, NET
September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
Crude cil and other feedslock materials 574,239,962 403,523,468
Finished products 309,288,369 327,808,425
Work in progress 105,417,301 121,361,245
Spare parts 51,344,083 51,558,131
Other consumables 22,339,692 25,260,746
Merchandises 825,185 825,262
Other inventories 3,848,753 3,577,292
Inventories reserve (81,478,104) {117,148,444)
Total 985,825,241 816,566,125

The inventories of finished products comprise mainly petroleum products.

The movement of the provislon for Inventories In In first @ menths of the year 2019 and 2018 is presenled

below:

Reserve nt the hoginning of the yoar
Accrued provision

Write off

Reversal provision inventories reserve
Reserve at the end of the period

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

(117,148,444) (47,203,208)
(41,078,252) (91,102,705)
v 4,249

76,748,502 21,153,220
(81,478,104) (117.148,444)

Ihe provisions for inventories represent provisions related to crude oil and other feedstock materlals,
finlshed products and spare pults talculaled as e difference belween the cost value and the net

realizable value.
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9. RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS, NET

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
Irade recavables 1,677,489,395 1,331,880,533
Advances to suppliers 47,621,523 16,787,625
Sundry debtars 43,586,879 43,538,082
VAT to be recovered 2,445,629 8,607,831
Other receivables 94,180,441 184,441,552
Rescrve for bad and doubtful debts {54,737,087) {55,039,860)
Total 1,810,635,880 1,530,215,763

The balances with related parties are presented in Note 25. The movement of provision 1s presented in

Note 21.

The movement in provision for expectad cradit logses for trade and other receivables is as follows:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
Balance at the baginning of the year {55,039,860) (62,819,891)
Charge for the year (334,339) {14,672,173)
Utilized 635,142 are, 727
Unused amounts reversed 1,964 23,188,380
IFRS 9 impact (RE adjustment) - (336,590)
Exchange rate ditferences (894) (8/8,513)
Balance at the end of the pariod (54,737,987) {55,039,860)
As at 30 September 2019, the ageing analysis of Wade receivables is as follows:
Trade receivablss
Days past due
30-Sap-19 Total Currant 1-30 zlle 30-80zile  60-80zile  90-120zlle  >1202zile
Expected credit loss rate 2.05% 0.00% 0.14% 0.30% 1.65% 211% 9.09%
Estimated total gross
TR A 1673099816  1,217,314,122 75,960,470  2,545859 710,01 725,352 375,823,882
Expscted credit [oss 34,323,545 - 109,954 7,534 1,701 15,308 34,178,050
RON Trade recaivables
Days past dus
31-Doc-18 Total Current 130 zlle 30-60 zile  »1207lle
Expected cradit loss rate 260% 0.02% 0.38% 0.05% 8 76% 5 24% 937%
Estimated total gross
canying amount ol dafoult 1,331,877,760 863,791,138 87435521 16,368,563 84,705 168,071 384,018,763
Expected cradit loss 34,623,679 170,784 336,590 7,542 8,300 8,866 34,091,580
Past dus but not impaired
Neither past due
Total not impalred 1-30 days 30-60 days §0-80 days  90-120 days >420 days
30 8ep 10 1,838,776,274 1,217,314,122 76870610 7,598,475 090,190 716046 341 G44 002
31-Dec-18  1,28/,254,081 BH4620,344  B/LUBYSU 16,361,040 8,405 160,204  328.82¢0,118

Trade receivables are not bearing interest and become mature at 3-890 days
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9, RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS, NET (continued)

At 30 September 2019, the trade recelvables at the Initial value of RON 34.32 million (2018 RON 34,682
million) have been considered uncertain and provisioned. The maovement of the receivable provision is to
be found below:

Collectively
impaired
At January 1, 2018 (55,857,748)
Value adjustments for Impalment of recelvables (1,354,525)
Reversad provisions 23,567,107
Fxchange rate difference (978,813)
At December 31, 2018 {34,623,679)
Value adjustments for impairment of receivables {334,114)
Reversed provislons 635,142
Exchange rate difference (894)
At Septembar 30, 2019 {34,323,545)

10.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Cash at bank 20,841,163 14,501,037
Cash on hand 5,303 1,727
Transitory amounts 1,195,972 4,180,429
Othar cash equivalents 1,002,371 757,251
Total 23,044,809 19,450,444

Other cash equivalents represent in the greatest part checks to be cashed.
1. EQUITY
11.1 SHARE CAPITAL

As at 30 Seplember 2019 and 31 December 2018, the share capital consists in 44,108,205,726 ordinary
shares, authorized, wholly issued and paid up, with a nominal value of RON 0.1 per each share.

The shareholder structure at 30 September 2019 and 31 Dacember 2018.

Statutory
Percent held amounts in

Sharsholders {%) [RON]

KMG Intemational N V 48.11%  2,122,250,643
The Romanian State represented by The Ministry of Energy 44.70% 1,971,500,905
Rompetrol Financial Group S.R.L. 6.47% 285,408,308
Rompetral Well Services S.A. 0.05% 2,198,030
Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. 0.01% 613,470
Others (ot Stalo or IKMOI Oroup) 0.66% 28,940,217
lotal 100%  4,410,920,373

The total value of the Company's share capital remained unchanged in the first 9 months of yoar 2019
and 2018.
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41.1 SHARE CAPITAL {continued)

Following the Extraordinary General Mesting of Shareholders of 30 June 2010, which approved the
capital increase with up to RON 450 million, Rompetrol subscribed and paid a total of 3,294,914,165
shares (equivatent of USD 100,222,279), and minority shareholders have subscribed and paid a total
number of 6,506 shares (USD 198). These shares have been registered with the Trade Register.

The proceeds of the capital increase were used to partially redeem the bonds held by the Romanian
slale.

Afler e Exlraurdinary General Meeting of Shareholders un 30 Sepleibesr 2010, the Cutnpany converled
ramaining unredeemed bonds into shares in favor of the Romanian State, resulting a total of
19,716,000,063 sharns amounting to RON 1,871,600,005 {(USD 627,546,864).

Consequently, the Romanian state, through the Ministry of Finance owns 44.7% in the Company.

11.2 SHARE PREMIUM

The share premium is the resuit of conversion of bonds into ordinary shares on 30 September 2010, in
favor of the Romanian State, represented by the Ministry of Finance, bonds which were issued based on
the Emergency Crdinance ("EGO") 118/2003 ratified by L aw 89/2005

11.3 REVALUATION RESERVES

Starting December 31,2017, the Company chanped its accounting policies regarding the recognition and
measurement of its non-current assets, for buildings category, from cost model to the revalued one. [he
Company has changed its accounting policy to measure buildings category at the revalued amount in
accordance with 1AS 16. IAS 16.37 defines a class of property, plant and equipment as a grouping of
assets of similar nature and use in an entity’s operations. The Company determined that the buildings
category constitute separate class of property, plant and equipment, based on their nature, characteristics
and risks.

The change from cost to revaluation will provide a more transparent and up-to-date picture of the value of
the Company's assets. Fair value of the buildings category was determined using the depreciated
replacement cost method. The valuations have been performed by a specialized valuer. A gain from the
revaluation of the Company's buildings category of RON 715.08 million was recognized in the Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Also the Company recognized in 2017 a debit balance of “Deferred tax” in amount of RON 114.4 million
related to the temporary differences resulting from the revaluation surplus. Strictly for presentation
purposes of the Financial Position (page 3) the Revaluation reserves balance Is presented in net of RON
600.86 million, being affected by the deferred tax mentioned before. The debit balance of Deferred tax on
the revaluation reserve in amount of RON 114.4 million was recognised in OCI.

At 30 September 2018 the Revaluation reserves balance {presented in net of RON 537 million) is affected
by Wie bansler to relained earnings of the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the assets Included in the building category. In
compliance with OMFP 2844/2016 and with the accounting policies adopted by the Company as of 31
Dacember 2017 the revaluation surplis included in the revaluation reserves is capitalized by transfering it
to retained eamings as the use of the asset or upon disposal of the asset, unless a transfer hasn't been
already made during utiization period of the revaluated asset Therefore al 30 Seplember 2019 Ue
ravaluation surplus transferad to retained eamings is in amount of RON 30,09 million.
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114 OTHER RESERVES
Hybrid Loan

The "Other reserves’ item includes the value of the hybrid loan in amount of RON 3,449 million (USD
1,022 million)

tn 202, USD 800 million of the total outstanding balanco of tho loan payable to KMG International NV
was converted into an unsecured hybrid loan, repayable after 51 years. Durlng 2013, an addilional USD
150 million were converted, the hybrid loan amounting to USD 950 million. The loan is ungocured,
subordinated to any present and tuture habllity of the company. At maturily the loan can be repald In cash
or fully or partially converted into shares The interest rate for this loan is 15% of the aggregate amount of
the company’s annua! EBIT (operational profit), and it is computed and becomes payable if the below
conditions are met cumulatively:

s the company records net profit after tax in the year
* the company will be able to distribute dividends as per the Romamian law requirements

The contract states that the interest rate mentioned above will be adjusted if the market conditions impose
it, depending on the level of market interest existing at the time of the contract execution.

In 2017 an additional USD 72.2 million were coverted to hybrid loan by conversion of a debt held in front
of KMG International NV.The additional loan is unsecured, repayable after 51 years and subordinated to
any present and future liability of the companies. At maturity the loan can be repald in cash or fully or
partially converted into shares. The Interest rate for this loan is 2% of the aggregate amount of the
company's annual EBIT (operatlonal profit), and it is computed and becomes payuble il the below
conditions are met cumulatively:

» the company records net profit after tax in the year
» the company will be able to distribute dividends as per the Romanian law requirements

Also, in 2018 and 2017 it was carried on and recognized a liability for the potential interest on the hybrid
loan in total amount of RON 69.3 million, based on the projected profitability of the business for the period
remaining until reimbursement of the hybrid loan.
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12, COMMERCIAL LIABILITIES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
Trade payables 3,5619,108,653 3,268,597,399
VAT payable 188,133,083 124 899,155
Special found tax for il products 27,560,632 27,560,632
Taxes payable 3556 (1.180)
Employees and social obligations 11,144,096 045,898
Other liabilities 1,012,632,979 504,310,419
Tolal 4,790,%02,999 3,936,412,324

The Company has a cash pooling agreement in ptace in order to implement a cash balance optimization
system, where KMG Rompetrol S.R.L. is "Coordinating Company”, and the group companies are

participating companies.

The cash pooling debt amounts to RON 1,003.87 million (2018: RON 392,80 million) and is recognised in

"Other liabilities™.

13. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
Short-term advances from other customers 97,407,520 89,334,760
Total short-term advances 97,407,520 89,334,760

Contract liability relates to payments received in advance of performance under the contract. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue as (or when) the Company performs under the contract.
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14, SHORT-TERM LOANS

Short-term loan from related partios:

KMG International N.V.

Short torm crodit facility for working capital neads, amounting to a maximum
ol USD 260 millliuny duo on Decernber 31, 2019 refunded upon request;
yuaratlots, asslytnent of tecelvables, plodye on holdings in Rumpelrol
Logistics, Rompetry! Pelrochermicals SRL, Rutnpeliol Duwnslrestn SRL,
Romoil: pladgo on bonk necounts. The undrawn amount as ot Soptombor 30,
2019 is in amount of USD 23/.34 millkon.

Rompatro| Well Servicas SA

Short-torm facility for working capital needs in amount ol up lo RUN 13
million granted o Rompetrol Rafinare SA, maturity date - May 10, 2012. The
loan was secured with a promissory note covering the debt. The facility was
fully reimbursed at maturity.

Rompetrol Wall Services SA

Short term facllity for working capital needs in amount of up to RON 7 million
granted to Rompetrol Rafinare SA, maturity date - May 14, 2019. The loan
was secured with a promissory note covering the debl. The facility was fully
reimbursed at maturity.

Rompetrol Well Services SA

Short-term facllity for working capital needs in amount of up o RON 3.1
million granted to Rompetrol Rafinare SA, maturity date - May 3, 2019. The
loan was secured with a promissory note covering the debt. The facility was

fully reimbursed at maturity.

Rompatrol Wall Services SA

Short-term facility for working capital needs in amount of up to RON 11.2
million granted to Rompetrol Rafinare SA, maturity date - May 28, 2019. The
loan was secured with a promissory note covering the debt. The facility was
fully reimbursed at maturity.

Midia Marine Terminal SRL

Short-term facllity for working capital needs in amount of RON 27.211 million
{through conversion of the loan in value of USD 7 million at NBR axchange
rate communicated at July 31, 2017), maturity date December 31, 2018, The
facility has been fully used.

Rompoetrol Financial Group SRL

Short-term facility for working capital needs in amount of USD 29.215 million,
maturity date December 31, 2018. The undrawn amount as at Seplember 30,
2019 is in amount of USD 27 million.

Inlerest due

tember December 31,
2019 2018
55,037,153 243,663,781
0 0

= 13,000,000

0 0

0 0

- 7,000,000

0 0

0 0

- 3,100,000

0 0

0 0

- 11,200,000

0 0
27,211,100 27,211,100
0 0
10,000,000 115,000,000
11,601,903 17,044,033

103,850,136 438,118,914
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14. SHORT-TERM LOANS (continued)

Short-term loan from banks

September 30, December 31
2019 2048

Banca Transllvania - 44,647,693
Revolving credit ceiling on short term of up to FUR 10 millinn, far warking

capital, maturity October 10, 2019, interest rate Euribor/Libor 3M+3.3% or

Robor AM +3 A% securtly on he presant andd Molure cradilor balance

account. |he facility was fully reimbursed at matunty.

Banca Translivania (overtaken from Bancpost) 59,964,609 57,541,024
Rompatrol Rafinare S.A.: Revolving credit ceiling on shorl term credit facility

of up to EUR 30 million, for working capital purposes, for issue of letters of

credit and Istters of guarantee. Maturity date e July 31, 2020; guaranlee on

the credil balances of all current accounts, Corporate unconditional and

irrevocable guarantae issued by KMG Intemational; morigage an the delayed

coking unit; pledge on machinery and equipment; mortgage on real estate

land area of 30,380,96 m2; assignment of rights from insurance

compensation.

Banca Transllvania (overtaken from Bancpost) 68,583,414 10
Short-term credit facility type cash and non-cash amounting to EUR

27,961,890 for the curment activity, issuing letters of credit and letters of

guarantee, due on 31 July 2020; guarantee on the credit balances of all

current accounts; Carporate unconditional and irevocable quarantee issued

by KM I; assignment of rights from insurance compensation; rank mortgage

on inslallations; HDV = EUR 9.3 million; DAV = EUR 14,3 million; DGRS

=EUR 7.3 million; AFPE = EUR 16.08 million; GA (G1 + G3)= EUR 5.2

million; ON202 = EUR 5.7 million; warranty on land and buildings - EUR

181,000; warranty on the aguipmeant; pledge nn movable production assets

EUR 10.9 million.

Intarest due 144,817 71,676

128,897,840 102,260,403

Syndicated lozan - through Unicredit Bank as payer agent - -
Syndicated loan = auxiliary componsant represanting overdraft loan

granted by Unicradit Bank 7,420,066 4,678,614
Syndicated loan — auxiliary component reprasenting overdraft loan

granted by BCR - 4,265
TOIAL 136,126,908 106,893,282

All Ihe financial cuvenants applicable were complied with as of September 40, 2019,
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15. LONG-TERM LOANS

September 30,

Syndicated loan — through Unicredit Bank as payer agent

Up to USD 360 million loan facility for repayment of existing lnans,
current activity, issuing letters of credit and letters of guarantee;
concluded by group companies (Rompetrol Rafinare, Rompetrol
Downstream SRL, KazMunayGas Trading AG, KMG Rompetrol SRL - as
borrowers and guarantors and [n KMG Inlemalionel NV as guarantor)
wilh lhe fullowing batiks (UniCiodil Bank SA, Raiflelsen Bank SA, BCR
SA, ING Bank NV - Hucharest Branch) and Unicredit Bank AG, London
Brunch us ugent. Tho facility consist in an up to USD 240 million principal
granted for & 3-year period and an auxiliary component representing
overdraft loans of up to USD 120 million for a 1 year period. For the
main component the malurity is on April 23, 2021 (with two options to be
extanded over a period of another 1 yoar, first option was exercised in
2019 and the second option can be exercised in 2020, so the period is 3
years + 1 year + 1 year there is the possibility that this facility Is available
until 2023). The following morigages are set up to secure the loan: a) the
credit balances of all current accounts present and future; b) the rights of
insurance compensation; ¢) invenlories (Propylene, Ethylenne, PP,
LDPE, HDPE, Bitumen, Fuel Oil, Jet FOB Med, Naphtha, n-hexans,
ULSD FOB Med, White Spirit); d) receivables from eligible commercial
agreements - for at least 80% ofthe debts assigned to notify the clients. 625,849,256

The movement of loans in the first @ months of year 2019 is presented below:

489,405,927

At January 01, 2019 Movement At September 30, 2019
Long-term borrowings from banks 489,405,927 136,443,329 625,849,256
Short-term borrowings from banks 106,821,606 29,160,481 135,982,088
Shori-term borrowings from shareholders and
rolatod padics 420,174,881 {327,926,629) 02,248,253
lotal 1,016,402,415 (162,322,818} 554,079,596
Interest short-term borrowings from banks 71,676 73,141 144,817
Intarest short term borrowinges from
shareholders and related parties 17,944,033 (6,342,130 11,601,903
Total 18,015,709 (6,268,088 11,746,720
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{All amounts exprassed in Lei {"RON"), unless otherwise specified)

16. LEASE DEBTS

Change In Closing
Upening o (gase gm  Unwinding Other  Balance at
.B:c'::’? n!:a agraements Repayment difference dls: ; unt Bameasurea s changes Soplombor
Aualysed as follows. with IFRS 16 S02018
Maturing within one year 6,339,722 8,336 (2,968,848) 69,576 - - 3,448,786
Amounts due aiter mare
then 1 yoar but not loter
than 5 ysars 3,837,493 18,330 - 144,940 82,645 - - 4,363,208
Amounts duo aftor b
yoars 672,017 33,410 608,336
Total 10,750,132 26,666 (2,968,848) 247,925 362,545 - - 8,418,430
17. PROVISIONS
The movement of the provisions is presentad below:
As at Other Ariging Reclagsification As at
Januaryt, comprehensive during the batwean balance Sume September 30,
2019 Income yeur shoul ety neullllzate 201
Retirament
benefit provision 54,063,385 - - - - 54,053,385
Environmental
provision 281,410,996 - - - - 281,410,996
Total 335,464,381 - - - - 335,464,381

Environmental provision

The environmental provision for the Vega refinery in amount of RON 281.4 million represents obligations
for cleaning of the il sludge pools and restoration of contaminated land.

At the end of 2018, a re-assessment of the provision was performed by consldering the update variable
Indicators (e.g. exchange rate and discount rate} The resulls of the reassessment suslained the value of
tho provicion in balance and no impact should be recagnized in 2018. The balance of the provision for
Vega lagoons remediation projects iIs RON 281.4 million (using a discount factor of 4.6%), balance
maintained on September 30, 2019 Al the date of preparing these financial statements, Rompetrol
Rafinare SA has finalized the selection procedures and the awarding of contracts for the rehabilitation of
lagnons 16, 17 and 18 Regarding the contract for the rehabilitation of lagoons 16 and 17, it was
elaboratad as a framework contract, which will be executed in stages (one or more lagoons), the first
stage being the rehabilitation of the two lagoons, the following could be assigned to the same contractor If
as a result of the procurement procedures his offer will be designated as the most advantageous for the
Company from financially and technically point of view.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year ended 30 September 2019

(All amounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), unlass otharwise specified)

17. PROVISIONS (continued)

Retirament obligations provision

Under the collective labor agreement in force, employees are antitled to specific rotirement benefits that
are payable on retirement, if the employees are employed wilh the entity at the date of their retirement. A
conresponding provision has been recognlzed brsed on the spealic benefils provided in the agreetnent,
the number of employeaes working within the entity; and actuarial assumptions regarding mortality, staff
turnover ete For the computation an actuarial valuation is involved making various assumptions that may
differ frorn aclual developments in lhe lulure.

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach roporting date.
The related service cost and interest expense are charged to perind profit and loss, whita all the actuarial
gains and losses are fully recognized in other comprehensive income in the penod in which they occur.

It is estimated that there are no significant liabilities relating to the provisions that will arise in the next 12
months.

18. NET REVENUES FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS

TOTAL Q3 TOTAL Q2

January - Septamber 2018 2018 January - September 2018 2018

Refining Patrochemicals Refining Petrochemicals
Gross revenues from the sale
of finished oll products 13,969,029,117 565,928,183  14,534,957,300 13,882,562,667 628,888,142 14,511,450,809
Revenues from
petrochemicals trading - 2,572,908 2,572,908 - 12,679,213 12,679,213
Revenues from other
merchandise salas 1,387,749 - 1,387,749 1,680,146 - 1,680,146
Revenues from ulliiss sold 8,832,586 - 6,832,586 8,177,230 . 6,177,230
Revenues from the sala other
products 651,348 - 651,348 429413 - 429,413
Revenues from other services 10,262,210 - 10,262,210 10,204,354 - 10,204,354
Gross Revenues 13988,163010 500501092 14.550.004.102  13901,053010 641,567,384 14,542,621,166
Less sales taxes {3,504,032,206) - {3,504,032,206) {3,261,997,869) - (3,281,997,869)
Total 1 1 1 1 1 1 11
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(All armounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), unless atherwise specified)

19. COST OF SALES

January - September 2019 January - September 2018

Crude oil and other raw materials 0,926,782 596 10,065,281,210
Consumables and other materials 47,705,570 48,939,999
Utilities 355,255,181 285,502,051
Staff costs 78,214,377 70,805,370
Transportation 64,584 439,569
Maintenance 73,744,586 82,435,729
Insurance 4,923,197 4,657,660
Environmental expenses 26,654,240 3,375,113
Other 37,461,166 35,379,059
Cash production cost 10,550,799,495 10,596,615,759
Depreciation and amorlizalion 230,458,733 209,361,926
Production costs 10,787,258,228 10,805,977,684
Less: Change in inventories 26,807,375 (74,990,299)
Less: Own production of property, plant &

equipment (894,520) (302,322)
Cost of petrochemicals trading 2,790,760 12,442,817
Cost of other merchandise sales 1,475,637 1,585,211
Cost of utilities sold 5,506,619 4,611,305
Realised (gains)losses on derivatives {12,997,137) 31,230,490

20, SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS, INCLUDING LOGISTIC COSTS

January - September 2019 January - September 2018

Staff costs 26,146,432 21,210,506
Utilities 7,050,657 6,962,716
Transportation 36,756,248 33,569,281
Professional and consulting fees 67,025,819 67,476,880
Consumables 622,865 348,634
Marlketing 122,046 188,336
Tuxes 3,154,815 2,799,433
Communications 36,233 37,175
Insurance 1,268,848 407,201
IT related expenditures 6,503,418 4,585,730
Environmental expenses 17,609,093 11,501,471
Maintenance 10,336,584 9,569,055
Fees and penalties 15,101,825 15,098,051
Other expenses 18,031,966 18,682,603
Costs before depreclation 209,/66,848 192,431,012
Depreciation and amortisation 31,003,887 21,167,331
Total —240R80735 _______ 219604403
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2018

(All amounts expressed in Lei {"RON"), uniess otherwise specifiad)

21, OTHER OPERATING (INCOME) / EXPENSES, NET

January - September 2019

January - September 2018

Loss from recelvables (Including provisions

and write-off), net (302,767) 13,727,082

Loss from provision for inventories and

writa-off, net (35,670,340) 16,260,133

{Gain} / Loss from other provigions - {13,664,238)

CUther expenses / (incoma}, net (1,087,520} (3/0,888)

Total (37,060,627) 15,962,091
22, FINANCIAL COST, FINANCE INCOME AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Finance cost

January - September 2419

Interest expense 26,802,166
Interest expense shareholders and

related parties 47,604,831
Commission and othor bank chargos 89,608,214

Finance income
interest income
Other financial income

Flnance Income/{cost) net

Unrealized net foreign exchange

184,305,211

(16.291,009)
(884,988)
(17,175,897)

147,128,213

iossas/{nains) 43,199,364
Realized net foreign exchange

lossesf/{gains) 168,148,311
Foraign exchange {galn)/loas, nat 211,347,675
Total 1 Y LN

January - September 2018

19,319,751

40,602,922
58,541,580

118,464,254

{9,698,195)
(551,620)
(10,249,815)

—_— 108214430

38,6840, 162

87,019,202

125,858,364

——————i 3,013,804
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 September 2019

{All amounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), unlass otherwise specilied)

23. INCOME TAX

The income tax rate was 16% in 2019 and 2018.

DEFERRED TAX

Balance at
Balance at Charfiod to ngmnd.ln sSsatember J0,
n 1,2018 Pr loss Equity 2019
iemporary differences
AsuaULlabilily
Property, plant and equipment 1,206,264,194 - - 1,206,264,194
Provisions (281,410,996} - - {281,410,996)
Fiscal loss (1,943,765,918) - - (1,843,765,018)

Total temporary differences

{Asset)/Liability {1,018,912,720}) - - {1,018,912,720)
froperty, plant and equipment 193,002,271 103,002,271
Provisions (45,025,759) - - (45,025, 759)
Fiscal loss {311,002,547) - - (311.002,547)
Deffered tax (assels)fiabilily calculated (163,076,035) - - (163,026,035)
Deffered tax {assats)/liability recognised {163,026,035) - - {183,026,035)

Contingencies related to taxation

The Romanian Government has a number ol agencies that are authorized to conduct audits {conirols} of
Romanian companies as well as foreign companies doing business in Romania. These controls are
similar In nature to tax audits performed by tax authorities in many countries, but may extend not only to
tax matters but to other legal and regulatory matters in which the applicable agency may be interested.
Management believes that it has adequately provided for tax liabiiities in the accompanying financial
statements.
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ROMPETROL. RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year ended 30 September 2019

{Alf amounts exprassed int Lei ('RON?), uniass otfierwisu spucified}

24, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Geographical segments

All the produiction facilities of the Company are Incated in Romania. The following brakedown provides an
analysis of the net tumover of the Company depending on the geographical market (based on customers
focallon)

January - September January - September

2019 2018
Romania ,224,247,793 5,742,586,036
Europe 4,694,888,189 5,410,639,750
Asla 115,437,344 119,701,433
America 18,058,569 7,686,077
Total 11,052,831,896 11,280,623,295

25, RELATED PARTIES

The ultimate parents of the Company are the company National Welfare Fund "Samruk-Kazyna™ Joint
Stock Company (90%) and National Bank of Republic of Kazakhstan (10%), companies with its
headquarters in Kazakhstan, entirely owned by the Kazakh State. The related parties and the nature of
relationship is presented below:

Name of the affiliatad entity Nature of the relation

KMG International N.V. Majorily shareholdor

QOilfield Exploration Business Solutions S.A. Company held by KMG International N.V

Rominserv S.R.L Company held by KMG Intemnational N.V

KazMunayGas Trading AG Company held by KMG International N.V

Rompetrol Well Services S.A. Company held by KMG International N.V

Palplast S.A. Company held by KMG International N.V

Rompetrol Bulgaria JSC Company held by KMG International N.V

Intreprinderea Mixta Rompetrol Moldova SA Company held by KMG International N V

Rompetrol Georgla LTD Company held by KMG Intemational N.V

Midia Marine Terminal S.R.L. Company held by KMG !International N.V

Rompetrol Financial Group S.R.L. Company held by KMG International N.V

Dyneff SAS A company ot Rompetrol Franca group, where KMG
International N.V. owns 49%

KMG Rompetrol SRL Company held by KMG International N.V

Byron Shipping Ltd Company held by KMG Intarnational N V

Byron Shipping S.R.L. Company held by KMG International N.V

Rompaetrol Albania Wholesale Sh.A. Company held by KMG International N.V {in liquidation)

Rompetrol Ukraine LTD Company held by KMG International N.V (KMG Intemational
N.V. owns 60%)

Romingery Vulvos luifo SRL Company held by KMG Intornational N.V

KAZMUNAYGQAS - Cngineering LLP (former Company hald by (MG International N.V

Rominsarv Kazakhstan LLC)

Uzina Termoelectrica Midia S.A. Company held by KMG International N.V (KMG International
group holds: 43.42%)

Global Security System S.A. Company held by KMG Intemational N.V (indirect ownership
by KMG Intamational N.V.: 51%)

Rompatrol Downstraam $.R.L. Company allifialed lo the Company

Rompelol Patrochemicals S.R.L. Company affiliated to the Company

Kom (1 S.A. Company afflliated to the Cormpany

Rompaotrol Logistics S.R.L. Company effilialed to the Company

Rompetrol Quality Control S.R.L. Company affiliated to tha Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 Septamber 2019

{All amounts expressed in Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise specified)

Rompetrol Gas S.R.L.
Dyneff Espagna SLU

DPPLN SAS

TMP SAS

Dyneff Gas Stations Network SL.
Rumpalrol France SAS

DYNEIT TRADING SL (former Bioneff SL}
Aget Ltd

Rompetrod Albania Downstream Sh A
Rompetrol Albania Sh.A,

Rompetrol Distribution Albania Sh.A
TRG Petrol Ticaret AS

Rompetrol Energy S.A

KazMunayGas Engineering B.V
EPPLN SAS

KazMunayGas Trading Singapora

KMG Rompetrol Services Center SRL (former
Rompetrol Exploration & Production SRL)
Rompetrol Drilling

Benon Rompetrol LLC

The Romanian State and the Romanian Authorities
Blo Advanced Energy SAS

Bio Advanced Energy PROD SAS

DP FOS SA

SPR SA

Fondul de Investitii in Energie Kazah-Roman S.A.
EPPLN SAS (Entrepot Petrolier de Port La
Nouvelle)

KMG ROMPETROL DEVELOPMENT S.R.L.
Dyneff Retall SAS

Oman JV

Bolssonnade Combustibles SAS

“Paul Orriols"Combustibles de Cerdagne SA

Company held by KMG intemational N.V

A company of Rompetrol France group, where KMG
International N.V. owns 49%

A company of Rompatrol France group, where KMG
International N.V. owne 18%

A company of Rompetrol France group, whare KMG
International N.V. owns 49%

A company of Rompetrol France group, where KMG
international N.V. owns 49%

A company of Rompetral France group, where KMG
Intamational N.V. owns 49%

A company of Rompetro! France group, whero KMG
Intamational N.V. owns 49%

Company held by KMG Intarnallonal N.V (Indirecl ownerstip
by KM international N.V.: bU%)

Company hald by KMG International N.V {in liquidation)
Company held by KMG International N.V {in liguidation)
Company held by KMG International N.V (in liquidation)
Company held by KMG Internationat N.V (indirect ownership
by KMG Intemational N V - 51%})

Company held by KMG International N.V (KMG International
owns; 99%)

Company held by KMG International N.V

Company held by KMG International N.V {indirect ownership
by KMG International N.V.: 49%)

Company held by KMG International N.V (in liquidation)
Company held by KMG International N.V

Company held by KMG International N.V

Company held by KMG Internationa! N.V (indirect ownership
by KM@ International N.V.: 40%)

Significant shareholder

A company of Rompetrol France group, where KMG
International N.V. owns 49%

A company of Rompetrol France group, where KMG
International N.V. owns 49%

A company of Rompatrol France group, where KMG
International N.V. owns 49%

A company of Rompetrol France group, where KMG
international N.V. owns 49%

Company held by KMG International N.V

A company of Rompetrol France group, whera KMG International

N.V. owns 49%
Socielale a Grupului KMG International

A cumnpany of Rutnpetiul France group, where KMG Internationat

N.V. owns 438%

Societate a Grupului KMG International

A company of Rompelrol France group, where KMG
Inlernational N.V. owns 49%

A company of Rompetrol France group, where KMG
International N.V. owns 44%

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made in the ordinary course of businoss and are
undertaken on a basls that cons!ders prevalling market terms and conditions as applicable lo lhe nalure of
goods and services provided or recelved. There have been no guaraniees provided or recuived for any
related party receivables or payables. For the exercise ended at 30 September 2019, the Company did
not record any depreciation of the receivables referring to the amounts due to the related parties (2018:
zero). This assessment is performed every year, by analyzing the financial position of the related party
and the market in which it is carrying on its activity
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{All amounts exprassed in Lel ("RON"), unlass otherwise specified)

25. RELATED PARIIES (continued)

A. At 30 Soptombor 2010 and 31 Docombor 2018, Rompetrol Rafinare had the following balances with

the related parties:

Receivables and other agsets

Soptomber 10, 2018

December 31, 201

KazMunaylsas Irading AG 643,427,082 543,840,084
Rutnpelrol Downstream S.R.L 649,043,7GC 550,577,571
Rompetrol Petrochemicals S.R.L, 481 1,657
KMG Intemational N.V. 6,104,680 4,734,170
Rumnpelrol Gas SRL 6,839,382 3,379,906
Rompetrol Moldova ICS 22,810,468 -
Rompetrol Bulgaria JSC 8,798,223 172,301
Rominserv S.R.L. 13,666,876 14,685,653
Rompetrol Quality Control S.KR.L. 573,869 142,898
Rompetrol Logistics S.R.L 16,310 8,764
Midia Marine Terminal S.R.L. 320,167 1,053,210
Uzina Termoelectrica Midia S.A. 7,421,093 12,897,191
KMG Rompetrol SRL 15,496,020 41,822,492
Global Security Systams S.A. 606,387 607,226
Kazmunaygas - Engineering LLP (former

Rominserv Kazakhstan{RKZ)) 731,325 685,045
Palplast S.A. 3,899,745 4,901,334
Byron Shipping Ltd. 1,927 4,302
Rompetro! Ukraina 16,467 15,425
Qilfield Exploration Business Solutions S.A. 2,942,225 2,583,952
Rompetroi Financial Group SRL 10,716 10,431
KMG Rompetrol Services Center SRL 55,472 52,139
TRG Petrol Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 13,460,354 15,359,133
Total 1,398,843,035 1,248,534,853
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(Al amounts expressed in Lel ("RON"), unless otherwise specified}

25. RELATED PARIIES (continued)

KazMunayGas Trading AG

Rumpelrul Duwnslrean S.R.L

Rompetrol Petrochemicale S.R.L.

KMG International N.V.- loans(note14)

KM@ International N.V.-interest

KMG Intornational N.V.-interest hybrid loan
KMG iInternational N.V.-trade debts
Rompetrol Gas SRL

Rompetrol Moldova ICS

Rominserv SR 1

Rompetrol Quality Control S.R.L.

Rompetrol Logistics S.R.L

Midia Marine Terminal S.R.L.- loans{note14)
Midia Marine Terminal 5.R.L.-interest

Midia Marine Terminal S.R.L.-frade debts
Rompetrol Well Services S.A. -ioans (note 14)
Uzina Termoelectrica Midia S.A.

KMG Rompetrol SRL- debt cash pooling
KMG Rompetrol SRL-interest cash pooling
KMG Rompetrol SRL-trade debts

Global Security Systems S.A.

Byron Shipping Navodari

Rompetrol Exploration & Production S.R.L.
Rompetrol Financial Group SRL - loans{note14}
Rompetrol Financial Group SRL-interest
KMG Rompetrol Services Center SRL

TRG Petrol Ticaret Anonim Sirketi

Payables, loans and other liabilities

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
3,195,181,121 2,738,264,220
41,881,899 124,373,373
8,440,811 8,440,871
55,037,153 243,663,781
5,112,687 8,416,020
69,291,612 69,291,612
24,370,249 18,003,466
2,163,145 22,140,921
38,261,408 6,851,705
82,098,066 168,152,011
14,772,925 12,801,524
632,293 480,857
27.211,100 27,211,100
592 665 6,782,733
12,498,348 151,732,497

- 4,300,000

20,738,700 31,816,349
999,820,172 433,543,620
4,052,600 1,361,012
23,867,366 23,057,982
753,324 620,700
3,234,057 -

66 66

10,000,000 115,000,000
5,896,551 2,746,271
1,711,325 3,274,809
10,346 10,753
4,647,730,049 4,252,347,263

Total

The company concluded a Cash Pooling agreement for implementing a cash balance optimization
system, in which KMG Rompetrol SRL is the "Coordinating company” and Rompetrol Rafinare SA is a

participating company; maturity on 4 August 2020.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT

tor tinancial year ended on 30 September 2019

(el amounis expressed in Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise specified)}

26, EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic eamings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is
based on the following data:

January - September 2019 _January - September 2018

Net profit (+), loss (-) (319,592,063) 30,428,112
Average number of sharos 44,109,205,726 44 108,205,726
Resull per share - base (Lani/share) (0.72) 0.07

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a) Related to the Company's ail products technological lending practice to other refineries, D.G.F.P Constanta
claimed unrecorded income, excise, VAT and related penalties totaling RON 47.7 million (USD 11.08 million}
to be paid by the Company based on an inspection carried out In 2003. A suspension of the tax audit has
been issued by the fiscal authorities (D.G.S.C. — AN.AF.). Also, the settlement of the administrative appeal
has been suspended until the final sentence regarding the related criminal case, as the fiscal authority
believes that this malter is now to be dealt as part of the criminal investigation started by the General
Proseculor Office (see firsl case in nole 28). The management Is conhdent that the Company Is able 1o
defend itself and the likelihood of a negative oulcome Is considered remote.

b) In 2001, the Company processed crude oil for another refinery for which it originally raised excise invoices.
However due to the law prevailing at the time, such invoices raised by the Company were challenged in front
of the court by the respective refinery and the courts held at the time that the Company is not to issue the
excise invoices and therefore the Company cancelled such invoices. The Company is now challenged for
such reversals by D.G.F.P. Constanta, which concluded not to acknowledge the conclusions of the court
decision and held the Company liable for paying such excises; the Company appealed the tax audit, which is
now being suspended as for the same reason described in the paragraph above. The amount noted in the
minutes issued by D.G.F.P Constanta is RON 9.5 Million (USD 2.3 million). The management is confident that
the likelihood of reversal of the earlier court decision is very low. No changes were incurred In 2019.

28. LEGAL MATTERS

Litigation with the State involving criminal charges

Starting with March 22, 2006, a numbor of eriminal invostigatione have heen Initiated against certain former
shareholders directors, managers and external censors of Rompeatrol Rafinare 8.A. and other individuals;
these investigations were carried out at a formal leve! and materialized into different criminal proceeding
activities (including specialized judicial expertise), currently undergoing the criminal prosecution phase. At the
present date, only one of the directors of the Company who is involved in the investigation, still works for
KMG International Group

The charges brought against the defendants upon the initiation of the criminal Investigations were:

a) failure to fulfill the investment commitments undertaken under the privatization contract concerning
the Parent;

b) unlawful statement of excises and other debts to the state budget;

¢} Incorrect keeping of accounting rogistrios regarding the tochnological products operations undertaken
at the oil terminal owned by Qil Terminal, charges which concern events that took place during April
2001 - Oclober 2002;

d) adoption of GEO no. 118/2003.
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(all amountis expressed in Lel ("RON")}, unless otherwise specified)

2B.LEGAL MATTERS (continuad)

Considering the above-mentioned charges, a freezing order were issued by DICOT and received on 9-10
May 2016 ({the “Orders"), whereby it was decided to impose a seizure (freezing of the assets) on the movable
and immovable assets of KMG International N.V., Rompetrol Rafinare SA and Oilfield Exploration Business
Sululions SA {furrner Ruimpeliol SA) as well as over the shares these companies held in their Romanian
subsidiatles.

The fressing of he assels does nol impact the inventories, receivables and the bank account of Rompetrol
Rafinare and this allows to the company to continue normally the day by day operotiona.

Rompetrol Rafinare challenged the asset freeze in Court. After two hearings in front of the Constanta Court,
the case was assigned to be settied by the High Court of Justice and Cassation, who rejected in full the
cliallenging submitled by Group's subsidiaries on June 17, 2016.

Meanwhile, the companies also challenged on May 30, 2016 the Orders to the superior prosecutor. The
subimission was rejected in December 2016,

Considering the nature of the allegations submitted by DIICOT, the KMGi companies applied for a motion of
disjoining {cerere de disjungere in Romanian) in order to have two different cases which shall settle the
allegations for RRC' privatization and post-privatization period — one file and a second one for the allegations
related to the issuance of the bonds by RRC (OUG 118/2003). No reply received yet from DIICOT on this
topic.

Since the KMGI companies had no capacity in the file till 2016 and it seems the entire process (with minor
exceptions) of gathering the evidences by DIICOT have been performed before May 2018, the Companies
submitted on Agril 7, 2017 their own application for, on the one hand, evidences to be attached to the file in
order to defend and one the other hand to be redone same evidences (such as expertise report) performed
before 2016. No reply received yet from DIICOT on this topic.

On April 12, 2017, the companies submitted also their application by which they asked the dismissals of the
allegations regarding the OUG 248/200 (regarding the privatizalion of RRC) and OLIG 118/2003 (the issuance
of bonds) taking into consideration the recent Constitutional Court decision no. 68/2017 by which the Court
seftled that the leglslative process, as well as the aspects regarding the uppuilumly and/or lawfulness of a
deed issued either by the Parllament and Govemment cannot be subject of a criminal inquiry and the
Constitution provides other leverages assigned to other public authorities to control such kind of things. No
reply received yet from DICOT on this topic.

On May 10 and June 28, 201/, the Companies submitted their Statement of claims against the DIICOT
allegations for the following topics: Libya recelvables, RRC privatization and post-privatization perind,
privatization of Vega refinery and the issuance ot bonds (OUG 118/2003), intra-companies transactions and
budgetary taxes and duties.

©On July 17, 2017 DICOT Issued an Ordinance which generally keeps the approach of the Orders issued in
2016 but let the civil parties namely, Ministry of Energy and Ministry of Finance, to provide the figures for the
alleged damage ey ncuned as well us the evidences fur suppuiling any dlleged damage. The only alleged
damage party which requescted the alleged damage Is Faber Invest & Trade, by Ils legal representatlve, for un
amount of USD 96.6 million.
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28. LEGAL MATTERS {continued)

A statement of defense against the July 2017 Ordinance has been submitted on December 22, 2017 as well a
challange against it submitted in front of the higher prosecutor on September 28, 2017.

On April 12, 2018 DIICOT issued an Ordinanoe which oancelled the provious Ordinances dated July 17,
2017, September 18, 201/ and December 8, 201/ I1ssued by tho In churge prosceutor of he Mle by which It
was an extension of the inquiry to various individuals and/or some of the criminal offences have been
approached in 8 worse manner for some of the defendants. Considering that those 3 ordinances cancelled
have as background the April 2018 Ordinance issued by in-charge prosecuter by which tha freezing orders
were impused over llie assels of IKMGI, the Group companies (MG International N.V., RRC, OCBS have
submitted on April 20, 2018 a new challenge in front of the High Court of Cassatlon and Justice for lifting the
assel freeze. On May 22, 2018 the Court rejected again the challenges submitted. An appeal against this
court resolution was submitted to assess from constitutional point of view if a legal provision based on which
the challenges were rejected match with the Constitution principles. The first hearing of the appeal was
schieduled for Oclober 8, 2018. The court postponed the Issuance of a resolution for October 22, 2018 when
the Courl rejected the forwarding of the case to the Constitutional Court as well.

A similar challenge was submitted on November 23, 2018. On December 04, 2018 the prosecutor agreed in
principle with a partial release of the seizure provided that an expertise will be performed, and the final report
will show that the value of the assets frozen exceed the alleged claims. The report was submitied to DICOT
on March 15, 2019. A new request for partial release of seizure was filled in on April 8, 2018,

A new ordinance was issued by DIICOT on November 9, 2018 which changes the legal framework for all
deeds investigated in the case.

On July 22, 2016 NC KM( and KMGI submitted to the Romanlan authoritles the Notice of Investment Dispute
based on the Agreement between the Govemment of Romania and the Government of the Republic of
Kazakhstan, the Agreement between the Government of the Kingdom of the Netherlands and the
Government of Romania and the Energy Charter Treaty.

The submission of the aforementioned Notice represents the first procedural step that might give rise 1o an
arbitration dispute between an investor and the country where the investment was made. Should a settlement
between KMGI and Romania fail to be reached, the case will be referred to and settied by the International
Centre for Settlement of Investment Disputes under World Bank, headquartered in Washington, D.C or to the
Arbitration Institute of the Stockholm Chamber of Commerce, in line with the provisions of the treaties and
with KMG companies' envisaged reliefs and measures to be obtained

On 22 April 2019 DIICOT issued an ordinance whereby all the participations owned by the company lo its
subsidiaries, as wsll as part of the movable and Immavable property of the company were released from the
criminal seizure. Also by ordinance was lifled the previously established seizure on property and
participations owned by KMGI and OEBS. A new ordinance is expected to be released until the mid of
November.
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28.LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

Litiqation on Tax As nents ¢ vad by Rompetrol Rafinare

In March 2012, the National Agency for Tax Administration Issued to Rompetrol Rafinare SA a General Tax
Audil Repurl cuvering Uhe period 2007-2010 and an Assessment Decision for Payment of RON 48 million
{equivalent of USD 15 milliun al listorical rale), out of whicls hall represents additonal pnncipal tax liabiliics
and the other half represents late payment interest and penalties.

On Ouluber 2T 2014 Cunslanla Cuurl of Appuul held liable the National Agency fur Tax Administration for
paying back Rurnpetiol Rafinaie appioxitately RON 21 million (eyquivelent of USD 6.2 million at the histarical
1ules) oul ol which approximately RON 48 million have been refunded to Rompetrol Itafinare in August 2013
and to pursue to audit again for RON 4.6 million VAT and relaled interesl and penalties up to March 2012 of
approximately RON 5.3 miillion, resuilting to a total of RON 9.7 million {(equivalent of USD 2.8 million) to be
further assessed. This Decision was appealed by both parties but on October 12, 201/, the Supreme Court
rejeclad Lol appeals, so lhe declston of e first nstance remained unchanged.

The re-audit for approximately RON 4.6 million (equivalent of USD 2.8 million) initiated in February 2018 was
completed in March 22, 2018 by another tax inspection team maintaining the initial decision of National
Agency for Tax Administration for the main VAT amount of RON 4.48 million, assessing a total of RON 8.6
million as related interest and penalties up to April 2018.

The company challenged tax decision for the amount of RON 13.1 million on May 18, 2018. The challenge
submitted by the company was admitted and amount paid was reimbursed ta the company

Litigation regarding CO2 emission allowances.

On February 28, 2011 Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. won the court case against The Romanian Government and
The Ministry of Environment which required the Romanian authorities to allocate to Rompetrol Rafinare an
additivnal number of 2.577.938 CO2 emission certificates for the entire period 2008-2012 (Decision
69/CA/2011). This first decision issued by the Constanta Court of Appeal was challenged by the Ministry of
Environment and The Romanian Govemment, but the appeals were rejeciled by the High Court of Cassation
and Justice of Justice on October 30, 2012 and the first court decision became final.

Aocording 1o the current Romanian and European legislation, the certificates obtained for 2008 — 2012 period
may be owned and used also for the next period of 2013 - 2020.

Considering that the Ministry of Environment and the Romaman Government did not fulfil the Court declslon
according to the deadline, Rompetrol Rafinare SA starled a court claim against them, having as object
damages in amount of Euro 36 million. — File no. 917/36/2013".

The last hearing was on Mebruary 25, 2019 and a docision was releosed on March 18, 2018, [he court
admitted Rompetrol Rafinare S.A claim and found liable bolh the Romanian Government and Ministry of
Environmental for damages in amount of EUR 31,806,598.74 in RON at the payment date for failure to
nbserve the final Supreme Court decision issued in October 2012,

Taking In conslderation that according with the declslon the court awatded a lower amount tian the one
requested, a final appeal was formulated within the legal time limit. The Supreme Court set the first hearing
for November 11, 2021, but the Company submitted an application at the beginning of Qctaber to ask for an
earlier hearing considering that already passed 7 years since the Supreme Court decision issued In the favor
of the company L s expetied he Supreme Courl declslon on this toplc.

The defendants also submitted final appeals against the same first court decision. All the appeals will be
solved by the Supreme Court in the future, a first hearing was not set yet In this respect.
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28.LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

Litigation between Rom | Rafin ngd Navodari Ci L]

On Novembar 19%, 2015, it was finalized the local taxes fiscal audit of the local taxes, performed by Navodari

City Hall, for the period of 2012-2014. The only non-compliant finding refers to revaluation of buildings made

by the company on December 31,2009 and December 31,2011, namely that not all fixed assets accounted for

in Wie account 212 *Construction” were revalued, and therefore it was not in accordance with the accounting

regulations stipulaled by OMFP 3035/2009. As a resull, lhe inspeclion leam considered that for year 2012,

certain buildings were nat revalued within three years of the previous revaluation and applied a higher local

tax rate of 10% for the buildings, and as a consequence assessed an additional tax on buildings and related
penalties in total amount of 20.4 mit RON, out of which tha principal is RON 11.2 miillon and the penalties and
steussuries are RON 9.2 milfilon (valculated undll Hie dale of Ui reporl)

#) Againsl [he linposing Decision Issued by Navodari City ilall, the company hes been filed an
administrative complaint with the fiscal authorlties. The administralive complaint filed by RRC was
dismissed as being lack of object, without any judgment pronounced on the merits of the case.
Rompetrol Rafinare submitted in court the challenge against this decision. This judicial procedure was
under court Invesligation procsedings wilhh Cunslanla Courl of Appeal who has coinpleled judicial
invesligation into the case and delivered a sentence on March 16", 2017, when the challenge
submitted by Rompetrol Rafinare was rejected. The solution has been appealed by Rompetrol
Rafinare. The appeal is in currently pending court investigation proceedings, and the first hearing
term before the High Court of Cassation and Justice is established for January 30, 2020.

b) Because the decision issued by Navodari City Hall of rejection the administrative complaint as being
lack of object is based on Navodari Local Councll Decision no.435/December 21, 2015, under which
Rompetrol Rafinare has obtain the annulment of 73% of penalties, Rompetrol Rafinare submitted a
second action for partial annulment of Navedari Local Council Decision no. 435/December 21st,
2015. This action was admitted by Constanta Tribunal. This solution has
been appealed by Navodari Local Council on Constanta Court of Appeal, where the first hearing term
was set on January 16th, 2017, when the appeal was rejected. The solution is final.

c) Rompetrol Rafinare also filed the request for suspension the enforceable effects of the imposing
decision, pursuant to the Law 554/22004 and Government Ordinance 92/2003, file no.788/36/2015.
The statement of defence was submitted by Navodari City Hall and the first hearing term was
astablished for February 22nd, 2016. The courl granted Rompetrol Rafinare claim and suspended the
effects and the enforcement of the Tax Inspection Report and Tax Decisions issued by Navodari City
on November 18th, 2015. The solution was appeslod by Navodari City Hall. The case is currently
pending court investigation proceedings with the High Court of Cassation and Justice of Justice. The
first hearing term before the High Court of Cassation and Justice was not yet scheduled. On
November the 2nd 2018, the case has been suspended.

Litigations betwgen Rompetrol Rafinare and Natlonal Compuny — Constanta Maritime Port

Administration S.A.
In consideration of the violation by Compania Nationala Administratia Porturilor Mantime Constanta (National

Comparny of Cunstanta Maritime Ports Administration) of the logal provisions regulating its aclivity, in the
sense that it does not ensure the maintenance in operational parameters of the Midia port found under its
administration, so as to ensure the safety of navigation, the preservation of at least the technical features
deeigned for the port, the assuranre of safe access and operation, the company initiated several legal
romodics against it, os follows:

a) Complaint agamnst Natonal Company "Administratia Porturilor Maritme® SA for violating the
provisions of art. 9 of the Law no 21/1996 which caused to Rompetrol Rafinare SA damages
consisting of USD 1.8 mil USD - dredging expenditures and 3.3 mil USD - commerclal loss. The
complaint leads to an investigation launched in April 2016 by the Competition Council. Competition
Council is enlitied to acknowledge the violation by Administratia Porturilor Maritime of the provisions
of art. 8 of Law no. 21/1996, to sanction the said company in accordance with the law and to render il
liable to perform, subject to legal terms and conditions, the obligations resting upon it as administrator
of port areas and supplier of goods and services specific to the exploitation of national maritime
areus, In parlicular with 1espect W Midia Porl. By Decision 21/2018, Ulie Competition Council rejected
tho complainte formulated by Rompetrol Ratinare SA and Midia Marine Terminal SR1  Both
companies challenged this decision at Bucharest Court of Appeal, first term being scheduled for May
13, 2019, in order to communicate to the parties tho statomont of defence issued by National
Company "Administratia Porturilor Maritime" SA. Next term was established for October 21, 2019,
when the court dismissed the complaints filed by the plaintiffs.
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28, LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

b) Court claim apainst the Constanta Port Administration for Rompetrol Rafinare damages related to
lower port drafts during January - May 2015 (0.8 mil USD) and for restitution of dredging expenses
{USD 1.7 million). On May 19th, 2017, the Court partially admitted the claim of the plaintiff Rompetrol
Rafinare SA against the defendant Constanta Mort Administration and obliged the defendant to pay to
the plaintiff;

s The amount of EUR |.B7 mllllon, reprasenting dredging expandiiures paid Ly Rumpebiol Raliiere
SA, duting the period 30 April 2015 - 11 May 2015;
s The amcaunt of RON 0 079 million representing legal costs

Both parties filed for appeal against the solution pronounced by first court. On December 27, 2017,
Constanta Court of Appeal admitted the appeal filed by Constanta Port Administration, reject the
appeal filed by Rompotrol Ratinare SA and changed the senlence pronounced by the first courl, so all
the claims of Rompetrol Rafinare against APMC have been rejected. Rompetrol Rafinare will submit
the appeal within 30 days since the communication of the decision issued by Constanta Court of
Appeal. The decision has been communicated and the recourse has been filled by Rompetrol
Rafinare SA on August 6, 2018. The case Is In filter proceedings, and the first hearing term will be
established later. During the filter proceedings, National Company "Administratia Porturilor Maritime”
SA has raised the exception of inadmissibility of our recourse, motivated by the fact that, according to
art. 483 paragraph 2 of the Civil Procedure Code,the decisions regarding the civil navigation and port
activity processes are exempted from the right of recourse. Rompetrol Rafinare SA has raised the
oxcoption of unconetitutionality rogarding the art 483 paragraph 2 of the Civil Procedure Code. From
this reason, The High Court of Cassation and Justice has suspended the procedure until the
Constitutional Court solves the exception submitied by Rompetrol Rafinare.

Procedure in which is involved Rompetrol Rafinars SA, Rominserv SRL. and employees of the two
mpanies, foll f a technical incident occurred in_Petromidia refinery on August 22, 2018

On August 22, 2016 a technical incident occurred within the DAV plant. Following the event, two employees
of a Group' subsidiary Rominserv SRL suffered burns and other two employees passed away.

The competent authorities have initiated investigations in order to establish the circumstances and the causes
that generated the technical incident.

I respect of the work accident, the Prosecutor's Office of the Constanta Court of Appeal office, was notified
ex officio and being open file no. 586 /P/ 2016, within which have been questioned employees of the 2
companies and was administered technical expertise.

Mollowing the completion of the criminal prosscution, Rompetrol Rafinare S.A., Rominserv SRl and four
employees were pul on lrial for. the non-observance of the legal labour health and safety measures, bodily
harm by negligence, manslaughter and accidental pollution. At the same time Rompetrol Ralinare S.A. has
quality as clvilly liable party.

Ry the final conclusion of Preliminary Chamber procedure, communicated to Rompetrol Rafinare and
Rominserv on March 27, 2017 the court ordered, considering the fact that the prosecutor did not reply within
procedural five days, to return the case to the Prosecutor's Office Court Appeal Constanta, finding relative
nullity of the Ordinance no. 586 /P/2016, irregularity of the indictment, prosecutor failure to respond within
procedural terms. The Prosecutor's Office Court Appeal Constanta made appeal.
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28, LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

On Juna 21, 2017 the Constanta County Court admitted the prosecutor’'s appeal and ordered the retrial of the
case by Constanta Court with the observance of the legal dispositions on the summoning of the parties,
namely the aggriaved persons and prosecutor, According with court decision of September 29, 2017, the file
shall be sent back to the prosecutor office whereas it has been ascertained that ordinance no. 586/P/2016
and the subsequent Act of Indictment of the Prosecutor's Office by Constanta Court of Appeal are subject to
relative nullity and that the object and limits of judgment cannot be established. The solution has been
challenged by Prosecutor's Office, the contestation was reject and the criminal file shall be sent back to the
prosecutor's office of Constanta in order to resume the criminal prosecution activitles within the limits of the
lugulity pruvisionw. Rumpetrol Rafinare SA received a subposna, as a defendent, for Juno 26, 2018, whan the
charges were Lrought o llght, belng tie same, will changes i e legal framing of the facts.

As a rasull of lhe completion of the prosecutor aclivilies accurding o he judge decision in the proliminary
chamber, on January 14, 2019 the company received the prosecutor indictment from the Constanta Court
{Judecatone). laking in consideration that the court has been notified with a new Indictment, the prelinlnary
charnber procedure Is lo be carried oul.

According with prosecutor second indictment, the following offenses were retained for ROMPETROL
RAFINARE, ROMINSERYV, STANCIU DANIEL, MARGINEAN ION and CARAMAN VASILE:

a. the non-observance by negligence of the legal labour health and safety measures, as per art 349 alin.2 of
Criminal code;

b. bodily harm by negligence as per art. 196 alin. 1 and 4 of Criminal code;

c. manstzughter as per art. 192 alin. 1,2 and 3 of Criminal code;

d. accidental pollution, as per art 98 alin 1 lit b of FGO no 185/2005.

Within 20 days from receipt of the document will be formulated written requests and exceptions relating the
legality of the procedure carried out by prosecutor.

As a result of the preliminary chamber proceedings, the requests and the exceptions invoked by the
defendants were admitted in part, the relative nullity of the indictment of the Prosecutor’s Office attached {o
the Constanta Courl of Appeal was found, as well as the iregularity which leads to the impossibility of
establishing the object and limits of the indictment judgment.

On Octaber 15, 2019 the court decided again to send back the indictment to the prosecutorial office due 1o
the irregularities mentioned therein. The companies intend that, after the court resolution is released, to
challenge it with regards to the companies exceptions noted against the indictmant which have been rejected
by the Court back In June 2019.

Relating RRC employees, Andrei Felicia and Oancea Comel, the file has been disposed. Un the other hand,
it was admitted the request filed by Rominserv for the plea of unconstitutionality of certain provisions 1o be
seftled further by the Constitutional Court. The respective provisions concemn the possibility to rectify the
document instituting court proceedings during the preliminary chamber procedure. Considering the
allogationr, oach company is facing, a maximum exposure of approximately RON 3 6 million

Also, on May 25, 2017 Rompetrol Raliiiare and Ruminserv received a reply to its challenge submitted against
the Constanta Labour Inspectorate Reports by which the Labour authority maintains the same considerations
challenged by the companies. On August 16, 2017 both Rompetrol Rafinare and Rominserv have recelved
finos sol by tho Constanta Territarial L abour Inspactorate (in cumulated amount of RON 0 028 million)

The minutes of the fine have been appealed by both parties involved. On December 14, 2017, the court has
requested to Rompetrol Rafinare and fo the Territorial Labour Inspectorate to send written specifications
regarding optional suspension of the case, pending resolution of the criminal file. The court suspended the
case untll the criminal file will be sulved.
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28. LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

it ived by Rompaetrol Rafinare S.A. in 2017

In December 2017, the National Agency for Tax Administration finalized the tax inspection in Rompetrol
Rafinare {covering the period 2011-2015) for: VAT fiscal group (all entities from fiscal group were under fiscal
control), income tax, withholding tax and excise.

Thorough the Assessment Decision (received in January 2018), there were imposed the following additional
taxes: RUN 26.1 milhon reprosenting VAL (of which RUN 13.1 million related tv VAT ol Rumpetiol Rafltiare
SA the rest belonging to the VAT group companies), RON 6 £ million rapresanting Rompatrol Rafinaro SA
withhalding tax and docroaso of Rafinare's fiscal lose with RON 144.4 million. The ralated penalties ossessod
are m amount of RUN 16.3 million for all VAI group companies. The principal addillonal laxes and relaled
penalties were partially paid and partially compensated with receivable taxes and the remaining, the
difference being paid in cash.

The lax assessment on VAT group and RRC was challenged on Mebruary 26, 2018. On January 23, 2010 tho
fiscal authority D.G.S.C. — AN.AF. issued the setling decision upon Company's administrative appeal by
which the fiscal authority decided the followings:

i.  out of RON 20 million representing VAT (out of which RON 12.8 million related to VAT of Rompetrol
Rafinare SA) the fiscal authority rejects the appeal for the amount of RON 11.6 million (RON 11.07
million related to Rompetrol Rafinare SA) and cancels the imposing decision for the amount of RON
8.4 (RON 1.75 million related to Rompetrol Rafinare SA).

i. rejects the appeal for the amount of RON 6.5 million representing Rompetrol Rafinare SA withholding
tax and the related accesories in amount of 0.2 million RON.

ii.  out of RON 16.3 million representing penaltes related fo VAT (out of which RON 12 mililion related
Rompetrol Rafinare SA) the fiscal authority rejects the appeal for the amount of RON 11.05 million
(RON 10.6 million related to Rompetrol Rafinare SA) and cancels the imposing decision for the
amount of RON 5.3 (RON 1.4 million related to Rompetrol Rafinare SA).

v.  rejects the appeal against the decrease of The Company's fiscal loss with the amount of ROCN 140
million.

The Company submitted to Constanta Court of Appeal a claim by which it challenged the amounts rejected by
ANAF - DGSC in the Decision regarding the Company's administrative appeal.

The amounts for which ANAF - DGSC annulled the Decision and ordered a re-verification are not subject of
the court claim.

The claim submitted by Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. was registered on 25.07.2019 at the Constanta Court of
Appeal, forming Case file no. 393/36/2019, the Court set the first heanng for November 13, 2018

Vega residual pools remediation project

On November 15, 2017, Environmental National Guard (FNG) performed an inspection at Vega Refinery in
order to determine the status of implementation of the Remedial Project.
Following the inspection, the Assessment Note no. 299 was issued, specifying that:

« on the same day the Gompany had to provide written information on the status of implementation of
the Project;

e ENG would inform Prahova Environment Protection Agency (PEPA) immediately of Company’s
failure to comply with its obligations spacified in the Environmental Integrated Authorizalion;

« afine of 100.000 RON would be applied for Company's failure to send a notice to PEPA with respect
1o the commencement of Mie remedlal wurks and to e identity of lhe contiaclor appointed in the
Projoct (by submitting a copy of the contract concludad therewith), including for the failure to perform
the works described in the remedial project and to comply with the dead-lines specified in relation
thereto.
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LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

On November 21, 2017, PEPA transmitted the Notice no. 149, informing that the Company must comply with
the provisions of Integrated Fnvironmental Authorization (EIA) until December 21, 2017 (related to the
execution of residual pools remediation project), otherwise the EIA would be suspended until remedial of
Company's failure, but, in any case, no longer than 6 {six) months, after which the EIA would be cancelled.

Against the documents received from environmental authorities, the company has brought actions in court os
foliows:

a)
b)

¢)

d)

e)

g)

h)

k)

preliminary complaint against Assessment Nole no 299, submitted to the ENG on Decomber

14,2017. The ENG poinl of view was received on January 1/"20186;
preliminary complaint agalnst Prior Notioe no. 149 submltted to tho PEPA on December 14, 2017, the
legal response time, according to the contentious law is 30 days.
suspension request of the Prior Notice no. 149, submitted on December 15, 2017 to the Constanta
Court; On February 5" 2018 the Constanta court has accepted the request for suspension of the Prier
Notice no. 149/21.11.2017 and suspended the effects of prior notification until the request for annulment
brought against the same administrative act will be solved; The Constanta court decision was appealed
by PEPA, and on the hearing dated June 21 2018, the appeal was rejected.
the request for annulment of the Prior Natice was registered at the Constanta court on April 3 2018.
The action was rejected by the court, the court sentence has been communicated, was formulated
appeal, the first hearing was set on December 12, 2018.
complaint against the fine (between RON 50,000-100,000) received from ENG, submitted to the Ploiesti
cotirt on November 29, 2017: the court reject the complaint. The court solution was appealed;, On March
5, 2019 the final court rejected the complaint.
request for annulment of the Finding Note no. 299/15.11.2017 issued by Environment National Guard-
Prahova Commissariat, registered at Constanta court; the file was suspended until the file mention at the
above letter d) wilt be solved.
preliminary complaint against Decisions no.7156/27.06.2018 and 77/10.07.2018 Iissued by PEPA,
relating the company request for revision of the Environmental Agreement; the preliminary complaint
was rejected, the request for annulment of the authority decisions relating the rejection for revision of the
Environmental Agreement, the next hearing is scheduled on November 8, 2018;
preliminary complaint against Assessment Note of the Ploiesti Environmental Guard issued on October
16, 2018 was rejected by the authority. The complaint was rejected and the company has 6 months to
challenge it before the Court. The annulment action was submitted to the Constanta court, next hearing
was set on January 16, 2020.
Complaint against minute of fine 1ssued by Environmental National Guard on November 28, 2018; next
hearing is scheduled on November 15, 2014.

Complaint against the minute of fine issued by Environmental National Guard on February 27, 2019; the
first hearing is scheduled on September 24, 2019. In the same time was formulate in front of the Ploicsti
Appeal Cuur{ application for transfer of the fils; next hearing was set on November 27, 2019.

Complaint against the minute of fine issued by Environmenlal Naliviigl Guard on March 29, 2019; next
hearing was established on December 5, 2019.

On Decembar 20, 2017 the Company submitted to the PEPA notice for initiation of the project warks (phase |-
construction) and on December 21, 2017 a correspondence with deteils regarding the oompany which will
execute the construction works.

On January 17% 2018 a detail plan activity for first stage of the project (preparation activities) was sent to the
PEPA.
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28. LEGAL MATTERS {continued)

On May 8, 2018 a request was made for revision of the actual Environmental Agreement by the company and
was rejected by PEPA on July 10%, 2018. The company legal aclion initiated against environmental
authorities’ documents is detailed at the above point g).The request for annulment of the PEPA decision is
currently pending to be ragistered to the court.

Up to this date no written confirmation was received from the environmental authorities regarding compliance
of the company with the obligations mentioned in the EIA, related the execution of the remediation project.

In 2018 waa contracted:

¥ o pilot test for 200 to of waste;

v laboratory testing to identify new technologies/recipe for stabilization of the waste;

v risk anulysis relaling uneapecled UXO0, which highlighted Lhe high probability of accidentat detonation
of unexploded projectiles if will be applied the technology regulated by tho current environmental
agreement.

Based on the results of the previous mentioned services, on February 15, 2019 was requested from Ploiesli
Environmental Protection Agency a point of view in respect of documented proves. According with the
environmental authority point of view, the rehabilitation works will be carried out according to the
environmental agreement and the technical documentation provided. The selection of tenders was initiated
and finalized, has been designated the contractor for execution of the rehabilitation works of the lagoon no.
18, the environmental authorities was notified relating the start execution of the rehabilitation works. .

On August 22, 2019, PEPA transmitted the Notice no.109, for suspension of Vega refinery aclivily due t
lagoons non-compliance, respectively for not presenting a firm agreement for all lagoons execution, with dead
line for compliance max. regulated 80 days, otherwise the EIP would be suspended until remedial of
Company's failure, but, in any case, no longer than 6 (six) months, after which the EIP could be canceled.
Against notice was formulated:

- prior complaint submitted 1o PEPA on September 12, 2019;on October 14 was received an
answer according with that the notice will not be revoked;

- suspension request of the Notice no. 109 issued by PEPA, submitted on September 13, 2019 to
the Constanta Court. On October 14, 2019 the court rejected the injunction for suspension. An
appeal will be filled in as soon as the rationale is released. Meanwhile, the company signed on
October 18, 2019 the frame agreement for cleaning up the lagoons and submitted it to the
Environmental authority to mitigate the Notice no. 109 / 22.08.2019.

29 COMMITMENTS
Environmental commitments

{he principal actwvity ot Rompetrol Rafinare SA of retinery petroleum products by lts speclficity might have
direct or indirecl effects on the environment in terms of effluents into land, water and air. The potential
envionmental effects of the Company's activities are monitored by specialized authorities and the
management of the Company.

[he Cotnpany has recognized a provision for costs of greening e lagouns al ils Veya wotking puin, (see
Nota 17).

As of September 30, 2019 and 31 December 2018 KRompetrol Rahnare SA has no specific environmental
commitments to conform to the Integrated Fnvironmental Authorization, except for Vega refinery obligations,
whildl lave Luot provisiunud.
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a0, FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS

A. CAPITAL RISK
The Company manages its capital o ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return fo stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital
efructura of the Company consists of bank debt and shareholder loans (see Notes 14 and 15), cash and cash
equlvalents and equily attrlbutable to eqully bolders of e Commpany, comnprising issued capilal, reserves and
retained earnings as disclosed in the *Statement of Changes in the fShareholders’ Equity”,

B. GEARING RATIO

{he debt — to - equity ratio at the and of he year 15 as lollows.

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
Long-term borrowings 695,140,868 558,667,539
Total equity 2,011,611,437 2,340,153,161
Gearing ratio 34.56% 23.87%

C. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
Financial assets

Trade receivables and other recelvables 1,666,338,287 1,320,378,755
Derivatives 1,446,502 6,197,265
Cash and bank accounts 23,044,808 19,450,444
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 1,690,829,598 1,346,026,464
0 0
Financial lisbilities mber 30, 2 December 31, 2018
Short term borrowings from shareholders and related
parties 103,850,156 438,118,914
Commercial liabilities and other liabilities 4,538,067,171 3,778,793,301
Short term loans 136,126,908 108,893,282
Long lerm borrowings from banks (25,849,250 489,405,927
Hybrid instrument - long-term portion 69,201,612 69,291,612
Lease deblts 8,418,430 -
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 5,481,603,530 4,882.503.037

| he estimated farr values of the instruments presented above approximate thelr carrylng amounts except for
derivative which are presented at fair value.

61
Cnglish translation is for Information purposes only. Romanian languago toxt is tho official toxt for submiesion



ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT

for financial year ended on 30 September 2019

(all amounis expressed in Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise specifiad)

30. FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS (continuad)

Trade and other receivables are at net recoverable value and the following categories are not considered as
financial assots:

Advances paid to the suppliers;
VAT tu be recovered

Profit tax to be recovered
Other taxes to be recovered

Similarly, for trade and ather payables the following are not consldered as financlal llabllities:

Advances paid from customers;
Fxcises taxes

Special fund for oil products (FSPP);
VAT payable

Profit tax payable

Salary laxes payable

Other taxes

Deferred revenues

The estimated fair values of these instruments approximate their carrying amounts

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

e Cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current liabilities approximato
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term malurities of these instruments;

¢ Fair value of unquoted available-for-sale financial assets Is estimated using appropriate valuation
techniques.

* The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties. As at 30 September
2019, the marked to market value of derivative position is for financial instruments recognised at fair
value.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hlerarchy for determining and disclosing the Fait value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

o lovol 1: quoted (unadjueted) pricee in active markets for identical assats or liebilities

o Level 2. uthier lechniyues lur whicl all fipuls which have a significant effect on he recorded falr value are
based on observable market data, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3: technigues which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are
not based on obsecrvable markot data.
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30. FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Septamber 30, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3
Flnancial assets
Trade receivables and other receivables 1,666,338,28/  1,606,338,28/ - -
Uurlvallves 1,446,502 - 1,446,502
Cash and bank accounts - 23,044, 809 23,044,800 -
TOTAL FINANCIAL AGBETE 1,890,820,898  1,689,383,006 1,440,502 -
Financial labllitlas
Shert term borrowings from sharehelders and
related parties 103,850,156 103,850,156 - -
Commerclal liabilities and other liabilities 4,538,067,171  4,538,087,171 - -
Short tarm foans 136,126,905 136,126,905 - S
Long term borrowings from banks 625,840,256 62h,840,256 - -
Hybrid instrument - long-term portion 69,291,612 - 69,291,612 -
Lease debls 8,418,430 8,416,430 - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 5.481,503,530 542,311,918 69,281,612 .
Dgcamber 31, 29]5- Level 1 Level 2 Levol 3
Financial asaats
Trade receivables and cther receivables 1,320,378,755  1,320,378,755 - -
Derivatives 6,197,285 - 6,197,265 -
Cash and bank accounts 19,450,444 19,450,444 - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 1,346,026 464 1,339 829,199 6,197,265 -
Financial liabllities
Short tenm borrowings from shareholders and
rulated parties 438,118,914 438,118,914 - -
Commercial liabllities and other liabiiities 3,778,793,301  3,778,793,301 - F
Shorl lenn Josns 106,883,282 106,083,282 - -
Long term borrowings from banks 489,405,827 489,405,927 - o
Hybrid instnament - long-tem portion 69,291,612 - 69,291,612 .
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 4,862,503,037  4,013,211,425 09,201,612 -

At 30 September 2019 there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no
transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements
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30. FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS (continued)

D. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses different commodity derivatives as a part of price risk management in trading of crude oil
and products. Generally the instruments are allocatad to individual instruments.

It also, the Company performs hedging transactions regarding the risk of increasing USD interest rates.

Derivalive financial insbuments are inilially measured at fair vaiue on the contract date, and are re measured
to fair value al subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of derivallve financial instruments are
recoghized ine profil v luss as ey arise.

E. MARKET RISK

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of risks including the effects of: changes in the international
quotations for crude oil and petroleum products, foreign currency exchange rates and inlerest rates. The
Company's ovorall risk manogoment main objective is to minimize the potential adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Company .

F. FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of preparing these Financial Statements, in accordance with the requirements of the
Romanian law, the Company's functional currency is the Romanian leu (RON}.

Crude oil imports, loans and a significant part of petroleum products are all denominated principally in US
Dollars. Therefore, in respect of liabilities the Company is exposed to the risk of US dollar appreciation to the
detriment of local curency, while in respect of foreign currency receivables, exposure arises in the context of
depreciation of US dollar currency. Moreover, certain assels and liabilites are denominated in foreign
currencies, which are retransiatad at the prevalling exchange rate at each balance sheet date. The resulting
differences are charged or credited to the income statement but do not affect cash flows. Company Treasury
is responsible for handling the Company foreign currency transactions.

G. FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVIIY ANALYSIS
The Company is mainly exposed fo the USD and EUR fluctuation risk.

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the RON exchange
rate against the relevant foreign currencies. lhe sensitmity analysis includes only the forelgn currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts thelr translation at the perlod end for a §% cliange in e exchiange:
rates. A positivo numbor below indicates an increase in profit and other equity here generated by a positive
exchange rate RON/USD of 5% and generated by a negative exchange rate RON/EUR of 5% . For a 5%
weakening of the exchange rate RON agalnst USD and an increase of the exchange rate RON against EUR
thera would be a negative impact in the profit, with the same value.

usD EUR
So| [ 2019  Dece 2018 Ssptember 30, 2019  _December 31, 2018
RON
% (169,468,015) {154,216,984) 2,682,616 5,501,207
-h% 164,468,515 154,216,064 {2,b82,6/8) (5,501,207)
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30. FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS (continued)

H. INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

Interest rate price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrurnent will fluctuate due to changes in market
Interest rates relative to the Interest rate that applles (o the financial insburment. Inleresl rale cash flow nsk is
the risk that the interest cost will fluctuate over time. The Company has long-term debt and short-term debt
that incur interest at fixed and variable Interest rates that exposes the Company to both fair value and cash
flow risk. Detalls of tha Intorost rate termes, which apply to the Company's borrowings, ute provided in Note 14
and 15.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the financial instruments al the reporling
date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
reporting date was outstanding for the whole year.

If the interest rates had varied by + / - 50 points and all the other variables had remained constant, the net
result of the Company as at 30 September 2019 would increase / decrease by RON 16.7 million (2018:
increase / decrease by RON 14.9 million).

l. QIL PRODUCTS and RAW MATERIAL PRICE RISK

1he Company Is attected by he volatiily of crude oll, ol product and reflluery margln prices,

The operating activities of the Company require ongoing purchase of crude oll 1o be used in its production as
well as for the supply of petroleum products to Its customers. Due to significantly increased volatility of crude
oll prices, the management developed a hedge policy which was presented to the Company's Board of
Directors and was approved in most significant aspects in 2010 and with some further amendments in
February 2011. Following this approval, the Company started on January 2011 to hedge commodities held by
Rompetrol Rafinare.

According to the hedge policy, on the commodity side, the flat price risk for priced inventories above a certain
threshold {called base operating stock) is hedged using future contracts traded on ICE Exchange and some
OTC instruments for the secondary risks. The base operating stock is the equivalent of priced stocks that are
held at any moment in time in the Company, hence price fluctuations will not affect the cash-flow. In 2012, the
Company started a few transactions of refinery margin hedge.

Risk management activities are separated Into physical transactions (purchase of raw materials and sales to
third parties or Intercompany) and paper trades (for economic hedging purposes). Each physical bansacliun
is covered through a related futures position according Lo lhe exposure parameters set by management (i.e.
based on physical quantities sold or purchased). The Campany sells or buys the equivalent number of future
conlracts. This financial frade is done only to hedge the risk of the price risk and not to gain from the trading
of theee Instrumenta.

65
Englisly ranslation is for infortnution purpuses only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission



ROMPETROL RAFINARE S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT

for financiel year ended on 30 September 2019

(all amounts expressed in Lei {"RON"), unless otherwise specifiad])

30. FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS {continued)

J. CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or purchase
contracts, which leads to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from fis operating activities
primarlly fur bude receivables and rom ils financing aclivities including Lank deposits, foreign exchange
transactlons and other financlal instruments.
Trade recelvables

Qulslanding customet recelvables are tegulstly monllored. The regulrement (o impalinenl Is analyzed on a
regular basis, being undertaken on an individual basis as well as collectively on the basia of aging.

Financial instruments and bank deposits

Credit risk from balances wilh banks and Mnanclal Instiullons Is managed Ly the Company's lreasury in
accordance with the Company's policy.

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

At the time of preparing the present report, there are no subsequent events.
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